
 
APPENDIX A 

  





COP¥

TOWN OF SOMERS TOWN BOARD

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER, NEW YORK

In the Matter of the Somers Crossing
Draft Environmental Impact Statement (DEIS)
and on a proposed Local Law to amend Chapter
170 entitled. Zoning, Section 170-13
Multifamily Residence MFR Districts of the
Code of the Town of Somers,

Somers Town House
335 Route 202
Somers, New York

March 5, 2015
7:00 p.m.

TOWN BOARD:

RICK MORRISSEY, Supervisor

THOMAS A. GARRITY, JR., Councilman

ANTHONY J. CIRIECO, Councilman

RICHARD CLINCHY, Councilman

WILLIAM G. FAULKNER, Councilman

ROLAND A. BARONI, JR., Town Attorney

KATHLEEN R. PACELLA, Town Clerk

APPLICANT:

RICHARD L. O'ROURKE, ESQ.
Keane & Bean, P.C.

GUS BONIELLO
Boniello Land & Realty Ltd

Reported by: Barbara Ulbrich

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Somers Crossing - Town Board Work Session

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: I'd like

to welcome you all to the Somers Town Board

Work Session, Thursday, March 5th, 2015.

If you'd please stand and join

me in the Pledge of Allegiance.

(Pledge of allegiance.)

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Kathy, are

you going to do roll call?

MS. PACELLA: Yes.

Councilman William G. Faulkner?

MR. FAULKNER: Here.

MS. PACELLA: Councilman Richard

D. Clinchy?

MR. CLINCHY: Here.

MS. PACELLA: Councilman Anthony

J. Cirieco?

MR. CIRIECO: Here.

MS. PACELLA: Councilman Thomas

A. Garrity, Jr.?

MR. GARRITY: Here.

MS. PACELLA: Supervisor Rick

Morrissey?

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Present.

So I'm surprised to see as many

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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2 people as we do tonight. It's been an

3 early, rough day today weather-wise.

4 We are going to open a public

5 hearing on Somers Crossing project. The

6 Draft Environmental Impact Statement as

7 well as the proposed Local Law to amend

8 Chapter 170, entitled Zoning Sections

9 170-13 Multifamily Residence MFR Districts

10 of the Code of the Town of Somers,

11 parenthesis, 170-13C.

12 So we'11 begin the public

13 hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact

14 Statement.

15 MS. PACELLA: Publish a posting?

16 SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Publishing

17 a posting.

18 MS. PACELLA: It was published in

19 the Journal News on February 19th, 2015,

20 and on the Town posting bulletin board the

21 same day.

22 SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you,

23 Kathy.

24 MR. CLINCHY: You actually posted

25 both public hearings at once.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MS. PACELLA

MR. CLINCHY

MS. PACELLA

I have them as one.

Did you? Okay.

Yeah, we have them

as one

MR. CLINCHY: Okay.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Mr.

O'Rourke ?

MR. O'ROURKE: Good evening.

Supervisor Morrissey, members of the Board,

and members of the public. My name is

Richard 0TRourke.

I am the Principal Member of the

law firm of Keane & Beane, P.C. We serve

as counsel to the applicant. It is my

pleasure to be here on behalf of the

applicant, and its' application to acquire

the necessary approvals to permanent a

grocery store, and an 80-unit multifamily

residential community.

The first step in the approval

process is this public hearing to permit

comment in connection with the Draft

Environmental Impact Statement that's been

filed with the Town, which examines

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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amendments to the Town of Somers zoning

codes to create a new Multi-Family

Residence Downtown Hamlet. And the

re-zoning of the site from an R40 and R80

so that it would allow us to proceed with

having a grocery store as well as the

community — multifamily residential

community.

The grocery store that is

proposed is to be located in the northern

portion of the property with direct access

from Route 202. The access is proposed to

be located directly across from the

existing entrance to Heritage Hills and

the existing traffic signal, thus creating

a new four-way intersection on Route 202.

The access to the grocery store from

Heritage Hills would improve the traffic

pattern in this vicinity, and is a

controlled intersection with a traffic

light.

The grocery store will be

approximately 19,000 square feet, and it

is anticipated to be locally oriented -- a

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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locally-oriented grocery store

neighborhood market. Parking for the

grocery store is proposed adjacent to

Route 202, and we'll go into that in a

little bit more detail. And the parking

will be on either side of the entry road

into the property. A total of 107 parking

spaces are proposed for the grocery store, ^

and loading for the store is proposed to

be in the rear of the building.

The proposed action also

includes the development of an 80-unit

multifamily residential community with

private roads. The residential units will

be two-story townhouses, and would contain

52 bedroom units, and 33 bedroom units —

33 three bedroom units — Excuse me.

MR. CLINCHY: And the 52 were?

MR. O'ROURKE: Two bedroom.

Sorry.

And all with two car garages.

The visitor parking would be provided

along these internal private roads. The

townhouses are intended to be marketed for

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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empty nesters wishing to downsize from

their current homes, and the project is

not proposed to be age restricted.

The project is proposed to be

serviced by the Heritage Hills Water

Supply as well as the Heritage Hills Waste

Water Treatment Plant, and those utilities

are adjacent to the site and across the

street, and their service areas are

proposed to be expanded so as to include

this site.

We have limited time to explain

the project, so I'm going to keep my

remarks brief because the concept is to

hear from the Board, to hear from the

public, to hear your comments with respect

to your review of the Draft Environmental

Impact Statement, and the proposed

amendments to the town code.

The DEIS has been available to

the public for some time, as you know, and

you'll see how much work has gone into

this with respect to all the studies that

are compiled, and as are required by the

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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State Environmental Quality Review Act.

Just briefly, the project

benefits and some of the reasons why we

believe this project is good for the

community are all set forth in the DEIS

that is the subject of the public hearing.

But I just want to highlight, if I may,

very briefly, the ones that are important

to us, and we also believe are important

to the Town Board as well as to the

members of the public that are here.

We are creating opportunities

not only for shoppers and those seeking

the convenience of a grocery store close

by. We also are providing an opportunity

for housing for what we all know is an

ever growing older population. The

grocery store will have its primary

entrance and exit right across the street

from Heritage Hills at an intersection

that already has a traffic light. The

location is well suited for this being

complimentary to the existing -- other

shopping that is immediately abutting the

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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site, and if you look at the studies that

are set forth in the DEIS, you will see

that what is being offered is much more

than merely a tax and shopping benefit to

the community.

There will be employment

opportunities both during the construction

of the project and afterwards. We also

apologize in advance. The format of a

public hearing and the regulations of

SEQRA, the State Environmental Quality

Review Act, the format for this public

hearing, it does not allow us to answer

the questions tonight. But by law, your

questions will be answered in writing as

part of the process, so we apologize for

not giving the answers tonight but we will

be in contact and responsive in accordance

with the process which requires all of the

questions to be answered, and they are

answered in the FEIS, what is known as the

Full Environmental Impact Statement.

I thank you very much and with

this, I'd just like to turn it over to our

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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Consulting Engineer, Tim Allen from Bibbo

Associates that will briefly go through

the site itself.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you,

Mr. O'Rourke.

MR. ALLEN: Good evening. For

the record, my name is Tim Allen of Bibbo

Associates, a senior partner there. We are

the design engineers of the project. We've

been working on this project for some time

through this Board and the Planning Board.

We'll briefly walk you through it, and give

the public some perspective.

The site is as shown in this

plan. This is the Somers Shopping Center.

We've got Fireman's Field here, the police

barracks, everything to the north.

Heritage Hills, the main entrance area is

right across from the entrance, as

Mr. O'Rourke had discussed. This is the

Heritage Hills Shopping Center right here.

We are proposing 80 units, and a

grocery store on the property. The

grocery store, as Mr. O'Rourke had said,

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

11

Somers Crossing - Town Board Work Session

would be accessed across from the Heritage

Hills property, which would alleviate some

of the traffic congestion in that area, we

believe. In terms of the — just the fact

that this would be squared up with the

property across from the light at

Heritage.

Secondly, the grocery store

would be 19,000 square feet. Early on in

this project in the planning process, we

looked at this and said the fact that in

the shopping center, we lost Gristedes

some years ago, and the local grocery

would be to the north of Bowler (ph.)

Place or down at the Goldens Bridge, and

we thought there would be a demand or a

need for grocery in this area.

Our applicant is not in the

grocery store business, but nonetheless

thought that that would be a benefit to

the community, to propose a grocery store

in that area.

The access going to the

residential units will be off Route 100, a

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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loop road, small cul-de-sac with 80 units.

We've got it at 50-30 in terms of the two

bedrooms and three bedrooms. This would

be 52 bedrooms and 33 bedrooms in the

residential aspect of this project. We

believe there's a need for that in terms

of the empty nesters and what have you.

Going forward, Somers is a

unique community in that it does — we've

got people getting older and wanting to

downsize. Quite frankly, I'm close to 50

and I'm looking to downsize also, so, you

know, unfortunately there is a demand for

us older folks.

Having said that, we worked very

hard with Heritage Hills. We proposed

utilities throughout the project to

connect back through the grocery store

property and through Heritage Hills to

provide sewer and water to this project.

Those agreements are in — they are in

agreement.

We've been working with Mr.

Barbagallo very closely in the DEIS stages

Schmieder & Meister inc. (845) 452-1988
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to get that to fruition, and we -- I'm

sure Mr. Barbagallo is going to have more

comments on the engineering, but

nonetheless, we believe this is a very

viable project. Something that Somers

probably needs, and we would hope that the

Board considers it favorably in terms of

the zoning and the site planning.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Tim, if I

could just ask you — maybe you covered it

and I can't see it from this angle, but the

access out to 202 from the Somerstown

Shopping Center, so that -- are you

proposing or part of the planning would be

to eliminate or not allow that left-hand

turn out of the Somerstown Shopping Center,

and the traffic would go through the back

of the grocery?

MR. ALLEN: It's anticipated that

this access would come to the back of the

grocery.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: And then

out to the traffic light and that's how you

would make a left-hand turn; to go down --

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. ALLEN: That's — in the

impact statement, that's what's

anticipated. There are several options on

that, but nonetheless, that's what's

anticipated.

MR. CIRIECO: Does this plan have

any connection between the Urstadt Biddle

Properties ?

MR. ALLEN: That's the intention,

yes .

MR. CIRIECO: That's the

intention.

MR. CLINCHY: There are —

MR. ALLEN: It ties the whole

aspect of that into — I'm sorry.

MR. CLINCHY: As you know, Somers

has, in recent years, tried to be on the

vanguard of environmental protection in a

lot of ways, reducing carbon, providing

opportunities for people other than an

automobile.

In this plan, are there any

improvements to the area that would make

it more friendly to pedestrians and or

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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bicyclists and, if not, is that something

that's possible just looking -- and I know

some of the people from the energy

environment committee were going to be

here but their meeting got canceled

earlier. So I'm going to ask this

question; from here to around that corner

to connect that area, as one of the things

that they are interested in, and -- which

would improve the Town, and might even be

a selling point to the owners. So that's

the question.

MR. BARONI: Let's remember the

format.

MR. CLINCHY: Right.

MR. BARONI: For all the

questions to be logged.

MR. CLINCHY: Right.

MR. BARONI: And then the

answers —

MR. CLINCHY: Right. I'm just

posing the question. I don't expect an

answer.

MR. ALLEN: Well, in my opinion.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

16

Somers Crossing - Town Board Work Session

we owe the Town Board a quick explanation.

Certainly, we are providing access from our

development to the shopping center, and

certainly your question will be brought up

in the FETS.

MR. GARRITY: Tim, you're not

giving access to the townhouses into the

back of that? They have to go out on 100

and around, right?

MR. ALLEN: That's to be

determined.

MR. GARRTTY: That's still out?

Okay.

MR. ALLEN: That's a question

that the public can ask, and you can ask.

MR. GARRITY: All right. So my

question is, will there be access from the

development to the grocery store?

MR. ALLEN: I'll let Mr. Boniello

discuss it.

MR. GARRITY: You don't have to

answer it.

MR. BONIELLO: Just to clarify it

a little bit. I'm Gus Boniello, Applicant.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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Right now, obviously, we are

dealing with the Town Board and we will

also be dealing with the Planning Board.

It is anticipated that this will have a

bunch of -- a lot of different aspects as

Mr. Clinchy has brought up with the

interconnection between our site and the

existing Somerstown Shopping Center. With

the interconnection, as far as, there will

be sidewalks. Again, as we review with

the Planning Board, depending on where

they want it, we'll put it.

If you're talking about energy,

it is anticipated -- what we are proposing

is that the townhouses will be geothermal.

MR. CLINCHY: Which you have

experience in?

MR. BONIELLO: We have experience

— it's a new — relatively new. It has

just in the last two years, basically, come

of age so to speak. It has become very

viable. We have used it on some of our

custom homes and they are anywhere from

4,000 to 5,000 square foot and we are

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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heating and cooling them with geothemnal,

and it has been an unbelievable savings.

I mean, is has -- it shocked me.

1 kind of thought it would be somewhat of

a wash, so to speak, and it's quite a

savings. It is very expensive, and the

tradeoff is that it is —

MR. GARRITY: Up front costs.

MR. BONIELLO: But it's such a

savings. We've had people give us their

bills. Basically, it's one bill. It's an

electric bill that covers everything from

heating, air conditioning -- obviously,

electric, gas, heating, air conditioning,

lighting appliances, and it's about a —

it's a third of what we expected.

MR. CLINCHY: One of our former

Town Board members has put that in —

MR. BONIELLO: Oh, really?

MR. CLINCHY: — himself, and

would agree to what you say.

MR. BONIELLO: Like I said, I'm

in the business of building homes, and it

shocked us. So anyway, that's what we plan

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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as far as energy efficiency. Including

with the geotherinal, you really upgrade the

insulation, the windows, etc. It truly

becomes a green package.

MR. CIRIECO: So I'm looking at

the diagram at an angle here, but the

grocery store, it looks to be cut off on an

angle?

MR. BONIELLO: Yes. That was

designed -- there is a wetland buffer

there, and that was designed to fit the

site. And one of the major things that has

come out of this process with being

green -- we've been doing this now for two

years. This was always our plan from day

one, so to speak, once we came before the

Board. But one of the things that has been

stressed to us from consultants to

townspeople, professionals was to switch

the location of the grocery store to up

front -- in the front of the site. Put the

parking -- switch it to parking and grocery

store, where you see it there, and it

actually helps out on all aspects.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

20

Somers Crossing - Town Board Work Session

MR. CIRIECO: So you can square

up the building, maybe?

MR. BONIELLO: Square up the

building, exactly.

MR. CIRIECO: I think there are

other alternatives as well — I mean, in

the buffer to allow for that if you want

the building to be placed there, but...

MR. BONIELLO: It allows us to

get out of the buffer almost completely.

There's a little bit of an encroachment

with parking, and even that is possibly

workable to get out of. That's something

that we've been working.

MR. CIRIECO: Is filling in the

buffer a possible solution?

MR. BONIELLO: Right now, it

shows partially in the buffer, but we may

be able to tweak that a little bit more.

MR. GARRITY: But that's in the

100-foot buffer?

MR. BONIELLO: Yes.

MR. GARRITY: Yeah, okay.

MR. CIRIECO: But whether that's

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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doable within the 100-foot —

MR. GARRITY: Well, you can do

stuff within the -- I mean, the Planning

Board is supposed to help mitigate any

issues that there is inside the buffer

zone, but if there's just an edge in it,

you still have a 100 feet to the actual

wetland.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: The

buffer.

MR. CLINCHY: Since you're on

that market, just for point of -- not part

of this, but just for public information

because the meeting -- the question came up

last night at a meeting that Tom and I were

at. The 19,000 square feet that you talked

about from the beginning that's in your

plan now for the food store, just for

comparison's sake for someone who's just

learning about this, that compares with

Stop & Shop, let's say, which is

approximately how many square feet?

MR. BONIELLO: I don't know that.

MR. CLINCHY: Is it about 80,000?

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. BONIELLO: That's much, much

larger. This —

MR. CLINCHY: That question came

up last night.

MR. BONIELLO: Most grocery

stores nowadays are in the 60,000 to 80,000

square foot range. This is more of a

community —

MR. GARRITY: So this is a third

or quarter of it probably,' and we can get

something that shows the different sizes.

MR. BONIELLO: Yes.

MR. FAULKNER: With regard to

comparison -- with regard to that point of

view, we've heard that this shopping

center, this grocery store, compared to

something like a Trader Joes.

Do we have any lead as to who

might actually be the operator of that?

Is it indeed a Trader Joes, which seems to

interest quite a few people or do we have,

you know, the XYZ company grocery store?

I think you mentioned it here before.

MR. BONIELLO: We have -- do you

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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want to speak, John?

MR. FAULKNER: You're working on

it?

MR. BONIELLO: We'll speak to the

DeCicco family of grocery stores. John

DeCicco is here. He can maybe fill in some

of the blanks.

MR. ALLEN: Well, one thing,

John, before -- I apologize. One thing I

was remiss in, we didn't talk about storm

water and the way this property drains, and

we didn't talk about the buffer as Gus had

said. We were slightly -- the buffer on

this side, there's a DEC wetland in this

area. Other than the utilities crossing

through that buffer and the driveway, we

are out of the buffer substantially.

All of our storm water -- this

site drains from east to west, and goes

towards a larger DEC wetland which goes

down to Mill Pond, which is where our

office is. So we've accounted for storm

water through this process in the DEIS,

and on that, I'll turn it over to John.
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MR. DECICCO: Good evening. I

just want to lead off by saying thanks for

having me here tonight. My name is John

DeCicco, Jr. from DeCicco & Sons.

My family group currently

operates five stores. One in Brewster,

one in Armonk, one in Ardsley, one in

Harrison, and one in Pelham, and I'm

currently working on our first lead store

that we are going to build in Larchmont

right now. And if we are going to

continue with this project, I'm going to

assume that I'm going to be this store's

lead also, and -- I guess, just basically,

I'11 answer any questions.

Just to start off with on a

square-footage note. Our Brewster store

is about 40,000 square feet, and our store

in Armonk is identical in this size. So

in terms of merchandising, everything

that's in our Armonk store would

essentially be able to fit in this store,

as well.

And I guess with that, I'll
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entertain any questions that you might

have .

MR. CLINCHY: The building —

correct me if I'm wrong. The agreement on

the building, that building would not be

built until that contract is consummated

with a tenant that would be a food store;

am I correct?

MR. DECICCO: Right. I think so.

MR. CLINCHY: And you would stay

in town for a long time?

MR. DECICCO: Yes. That would be

our intention.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: You would

be a welcome business for our town.

MR. DECICCO: Thank you.

MR. GARRITY: That's good.

MR. CLINCHY: And that would be a

full-service store?

MR. DECICCO: Yes. And our

concentration, typically, is on the

perishable department, on the produce, on

the fish, on the meat, prepared foods,

cheese, deli, bakery. That's just our
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concentration and of course we have all,

you know, general grocery, dairy, frozen as

well, organic, natural, and conventional

groceries all at the same time.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: So you're

saying that it's equivalent to the

Armonk — what is the square footage of

Armonk?

MR. DECICCO: Armonk is 18,000

square feet.

MR. CLINCHY: It's 18?

MR. DECICCO: Yes.

MR. CLINCHY: Where is it located

in Armonk?

MR. DECICCO: Right in the

downtown. It was just built in Armonk

Square. We finished in June of 2013. We

opened in July.

MR. CIRIECO: The one in

Jefferson Valley?

MR. DECICCO: That's my uncle's

store. I think that store is about 15,000.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you.

MR. BONIELLO: If the Board or
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anybody else gets a chance, I would

strongly recommend going down to see their

operation at the Armonk store. It's quite

a store.

MR. CLINCHY: And what people see

there is what they would expect if this

comes to fruition in Somers?

MR. BONIELLO: Yes.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: I'm

just going to -- this is like Jeopardy. I

have to pose it as a question.

So at one point in time you had

a memory center planned for the parcel of

land that runs parallel to 100, so you

eliminated that and you added a number of

townhouses. And I have gone on record a

number of times regarding the density. I

think it was 60 units, and then you did

away with memory care and now it's up to

80, and, you know, my feeling -- it's a

public hearing. I'm just airing my

concern that 80 units would be pretty

dense for that site, and if there were to

be a reduction, I would think that it
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would be along that corridor.

So the question would be — and

you don't have to answer it tonight. But

what would the reduction — if you

entertain a reduction in the number of

townhouses between 60 and 80, what is that

number?

MR. BON1ELLO: That's fine.

We'll entertain it, and we will try to

answer that.

MR. GARRITY: And the Planning

Board will obviously have you do multiple

designs.

MR. BONIELLO: Yes.

MR. CLINCHY: And the other

question that I have is in what we've been

given, it all talks about impervious

pavement. I'm just wondering, since the

Town has used pervious for parking in the

Town, Reis Park and out here, whether there

be any planning for pervious pavement at

any point -- I understand on roads, it

doesn't work as well, so that's just a

question.
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MR. O'ROURKE: That's a question

that we will answer.

MR. CLINCHY: Okay.

MR. O'ROURKE: I think,

obviously, it has been posed, and I think

it's, you know, the reduction in impervious

surface. Is there a consideration of that?

We are now considering it obviously because

the question has been raised.

I think the other point too, is

that, you know, there are alternatives

that have been examined, that go to the

density question, which was one of the

supervisor, and the question has been

posed and we have to answer it.

I don't want to get off the path

that we should be following, which is you

pose a question -- we have to answer them,

and nothing you asked thus far is totally

outrageous and —

MR. CLINCHY: We'll try harder.

I'm only on page 5.

MR. O'ROURKE: And we recognize

and respect the process. And I think the
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important thing is that we hear the

questions, and we have to answer them. And

then your consultants are going to say

whether we answered them to the extent

necessary, or we have not.

And I don't mean to belabor

that, but that is a process, and I don't

know whether we might say something

tonight without going back and doing

further analysis, and I don't want to

prejudice what would be an appropriate

written response.

MR. CIRIECO: Don't answer it.

You shouldn't.

MR. GARRITY: The process is, you

don't, so.

MR. O'ROURKE: Thanks.

MR. BONIELLO: The quick answer

to that though. Rick, is that --

(Laughter.)

MR. BONIELLO: -- we are not

trying to be evasive. The storm water is

being taken care of. There's a lot of use

among the ground, subsurface galleries,
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that kind of stuff. So, yes.

But, anyway, we are here to hear

from the public, if the Board so wishes.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: ' Speaking

of the public, is there anyone here for

public comment on —

MR. GARRITY: Or questions.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Yeah. Not

comments necessarily, but a question for

the developer on the Draft Environmental

Impact Statement -- or, actually, the

Multi-Family Residential Zone that we are

proposing?

MR. GARRITY: Come on up, Linda.

MS. SIMPSON: Do I have to ask a

question, or can I just make a comment?

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: You can

make a comment.

MS. SIMPSON: Okay.

MR. O'ROURKE: Just, by the way,

I would just ask that each person state his

or her name. We have a court stenographer,

so I want to make sure we get your name

correct.
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SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: That's our

policy and procedure.

MR. O'ROURKE: Thank you. Just

wanted to make sure.

MS. SIMPSON: Hi, I'm Linda

Simpson. So my concern about this

development is — I actually like the idea

of a smaller grocery store. I thought it

was an enormous one, initially, but it's

obviously not, and I think that's cool and

I like DeCicco's a lot.

(Laughter.)

MS. SIMPSON: It's a good place.

But I'm more concerned about this housing

project, and what kind of precedent it's

going to set for this community if we start

allowing, you know, new zoning rules to be

created just for the purpose of creating

housing for him. I mean, does that then

allow somebody else to come along and start

putting housing all over Route 100 and even

though I do like the idea of this smaller

grocery store, what's going to happen in

the future if other people want to start
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coming and putting in more shops and more

retail? Because what I'm terrified about

happening in this Town is that we end up

looking like -- no offense to anybody here

that maybe lives in Yorktown, but I don't

want to be like Yorktown. Because it's

really not very nice when you drive into

the middle of Yorktown, and — you know,

does it say something in our master plan

about us trying to preserve the semi-rural

character of where we live? You know, I'm

just worried about what happens if this

goes ahead further down the road, you know.

How much more development are we going to

keep allowing and allowing?

I just think that we need a

smaller grocery store in Somers. You know

that one that used to be there? I forget

what it was.

MR. CLINCHY: Gristedes.

MS. SIMPSON: Yeah, and

everything was rotten all the time and

stuff.

(Laughter.)
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MS. SIMPSON: Yeah, don't have

rotten stuff, please.

MR. CLINCHY: No rotten stuff in

Somers. You send it to Armonk, don't bring

it here.

(Laughter.)

MS. SIMPSON: That's was the

worst grocery store ever. But, you know,

so I'm very concerned about that. What

kind of floodgate might we be opening if

this goes ahead as proposed? And I

personally think that's too much housing

and maybe I missed it, but who is this

housing designed for? Who's going to be

living in that? What kind of — families?

MR. GARRITY: Well, it's designed

for empty nesters. The main bedroom --

MR. CLINCHY: It's not age

restricted.

MR. GARRITY: Right. It's not

age restricted, but the master bedroom is

going to be on the bottom floor with the

other bedrooms up top.

MS. SIMPSON: Oh, I see. Okay.
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2 I just wasn't clear about that.

3 Of course my other big concern

4 is all this wetland, and furthermore,

5 actually, all the trees and things that

6 are going to be cut down in order to allow

7 this to proceed. I mean, obviously, I

8 like the fact that there are wild animals

9 around here.

10 Last night, I saw a weasel,

11 actually, coming home from the meeting. I

12 was like, cool. I was like, wow, that

13 looks like a cat, but it wasn't. It was a

14 weasel. And I like that there is all this

15 wildlife around here. That's one of the

16 reasons I like living out here. I like

17 that there are wild animals and, you know,

18 you're going to ruin their homes, you

19 know? And all this wetland and

20 everything.

21 There's all kinds of little

22 endangered species of things that live

23 there, and I'm worried about the negative

24 effects of what's going to happen because

25 -- I'm sorry. But a lot of those
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creatures and plant life and all that kind

of stuff that lives there will be

displaced or destroyed. Maybe not

intentionally, but certainly as an ongoing

factor, all the other building that's

going to be going on around there. I

mean, I see that line of — how close that

grocery store is to that wetland, and, I

mean, it's inevitable that there — I

mean, what about runoff and all that kind

of stuff, you know?

There's going to be runoff. Ice

melt, gasoline from parked cars, and all

that kind of thing, so I just think you

guys really need to consider very

carefully how large you allow this to

become, and think what kind of precedent

you might be setting for any future

development in Somers that might, you

know, negatively impact the semi-rural

character of where we live. Because I

think most people living here in Somers

like the semi-rural character of our town.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: As do we.
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MS. SIMPSON: Yeah. So I think

you need to carefully consider that.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you.

MR. CLINCHY: I think last night

you asked a question of Tom or me about a

specific bird you were concerned about that

you had seen in there.

MS. SIMPSON: A specific bird?

Was it the ivory-billed woodpecker?

MR. CLINCHY: Was that the one?

MS. SIMPSON: That's the extinct

one in Arkansas.

MR. CLINCHY: Oh, okay. I

thought I forget, and I didn't have the

answer. I just wanted to know if you

wanted to get that in.

MS. SIMPSON: Wow, I don't think

that was me.

You know, I previously did,

actually, come and speak in front of this

Board when our previous supervisor was

here about this thing way back when, and I

actually had a big long boring list of all

the endangered animals and plant life and
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such that actually could be in this area.

And there's a lot. There are lot of

little critters and things that live

particularly in wetlands that are going to

be endangered by a project of this size.

MR. CLINCHY: Well, one of our

consultants is specifically empowered or

expected to comment on all that, and to

soften any blow that might potentially --

MR. GARRITY: Well, as Mr.

Clinchy is saying, we have a consultant who

is supposed to look into it, but from the

wetland standpoint, you know, that's where

the Planning Board really comes into play.

To put in measures that make sure that --

you know, obviously the housing is not in

the buffer. Part of the store may be

slightly in the buffer, but the Planning

Board is supposed to mitigate any problems

-- to put in things that will keep things

like runoff and things like that from not

affecting the actual wetland. I mean,

that's their goal, and they'll be telling

storm water management, projects, and
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things like that also.

MS. SIMPSON: Yeah, because I'm

looking at that second row of houses that

are very close to that wetland, I mean, how

do you stop septic from seeping in there?

MR. GARRITY: Well, that's the

wetland buffer. There's no septic. It's

going into the Heritage Water and Sewer.

MS. SIMPSON: Oh, okay.

MR. GARRITY: And there's also

a -- 100 feet from that line to the actual

wetland. We do a 100-foot buffer that you

really have to go through quite a few

things to build in or to do anything at

all. But it's all sewer --

MR. BARONI: You're not going to

leave any answers.

MR. GARRITY: Oh, I'm sorry.

Sorry about that. I was on a Planning

Board for a bunch of years.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Ms.

Simpson, your issues, your concerns are

many that we share on the Board, and that

is why we have a Planning Board, and that
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is why we have consultants. And you're

here at the public hearing on the Draft

Environmental Impact, so some of your

questions are very germane to the topic,

and, you know, if Mr. Wells, if you want to

comment on any of the environmental impact

in the draft?

MR. WELLS: Not at this time.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Okay. But

it's all in the Draft Environmental Impact

Statement. We ask the questions and the

applicant is bound to come back to us with

-- in their Final Draft Environmental

Impact Statement to answer those questions.

MS. SIMPSON: Right. Okay.

MR. GARRITY: So if you can think

of any others, you can still — you have

until Wednesday to --

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Well,

yeah, that's something that I have to amend

in the SEQRA anyway, so.

MS. SIMPSON: Right. Yeah, I

mean, obviously I'm concerned about the

wetland, and the runoff, and all that sort
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of thing. But I actually think my bigger

concern is, what kind of precedent does

this set for our town going forward? And I

think that could be a slippery slope.

MR. CLINCHY: I would say that

it's safe to say that there is very little,

if any, sentiment to extend that down

through Route 100, even though it's a

reasonable fear, I don't know of anyone who

favors that, even just more and more down

that -- it's environmentally sensitive, and

I don't think anyone wants that.

MR. CIRIECO: We do have a master

plan. We had an opportunity to take a look

at it and see that, you know, there are

limits to what can be done.

MS. SIMPSON: And I've looked at

the old one plenty of times.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Online

this week will be our land use component of

the updated comp plan, so we are going to

have a discussion with -- regarding the

master plan, our comprehensive plan next —

at our next board meeting, so that would be
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an interesting meeting to attend.

MS. SIMPSON: Okay. Thank you.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you.

Any other public comment?

Come up and state your name.

MS. DUVALL: Good evening. My

name is Misti Duvall, M-I-S-T-I

D-U-V-A-L-L. I am a staff attorney with

Riverkeeper. Riverkeeper is a member

supported watchdog organization dedicated

to defending the Hudson River and its

tributaries, and the New York City Drinking

Water Supply Watershed. We are a signatory

to the New York City Watershed Agreement

and we have a commitment to ensuring that

development projects like this one that are

built in the New York City Watershed don't

adversely impact surface water resources

that provide drinking water to consumers.

We are still looking at the DEIS

and completing our review, and we are

going to be submitting more detailed

comments in writing, so I'm just going to

be very brief tonight.
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Our main concerns are things

that have already been discussed here

about storm water runoff and the

encroachment into the wetland buffer area..

There's is also a concern about the amount

of clearing and site disturbance on the

site. The site itself is a little over 26

acres with a little over 16 acres of

clearing and disturbance, and my

understanding is that all of that is

forested. So that's going to be quite a

large land clearing there, and we are

looking very closely at the draft

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and

the storm water controls that are there,

and we'll submit comments on those.

I think, we echo a lot of the

concerns that you've heard about the

disturbance in the wetland buffer. We

generally try to advocate for all

development outside of wetland buffers,

which is pretty standard within the New

York City Watershed, and I'd like to share

that there is some flexibility there and
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some openness to moving all of the

development outside of the buffer area. I

think there's about an acre in the buffer,

so if that could be moved out, that's

something that we would definitely

advocate for.

The last thing that I just

wanted to raise, and I think you may

already be in the process of being

addressed.

MR. CLINCHY: You sent a memo on

that?

MS. DUVALL: I did. That was —

I requested an extension until at least

March 25th, so if you're about to say that

you're going to grant that, I'll be quiet.

But if not, I'll reiterate my request.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Yes.

Well, this may be an opportune time to just

look at that -- the document dated

February 12th regarding Notice of

Completion. We have a March 16th date

which, you know, we are going to amend, and

instead of putting in a hard and fast date,
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we are planning to continue this Public

Hearing to April 11th. And then whenever

the corament — whenever the hearing is

closed, be it on the 9th, we will continue

a written comment period for 10 days after

that.

So that should give Riverkeepers

and other concerned entities time to

review and comment, you know, we want to

get this project fully vetted in a public

venue.

MS. DUVALL: Okay. That is great

for us. Thank you very much.

MR. CLINCHY: Thank you.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thanks for

coming.

MR. CIRIECO: I just want to talk

about the interconnect, so I'm going to ask

a question. There's a committing process

between the Town and, I guess. Heritage

Hills — for the interconnect.

MR. GARRITY: The hook into the

sewer.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Right.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. CIRIECO: So I think

everything seems to be working in terms of

the way permits are scaled to size, but we

know that the system in Heritage Hills is

not functioning up to capacity. So as you

go through that process — as you go

through your process, if you can explain to

us in some of your responses how you're

going to handle that?

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Which is a

question.

MR. O'ROURKE: We will respond,

but I can say that as of this afternoon in

conversations with DEP, they are emphatic

about their commitment that the plant will

be fixed and upgraded so as to meet all of

the regulatory standards. That was there

-- that's the obligation, and they are

continuing to work on that.

MR. CIRIECO: That's what we want

to hear.

MR. O'ROURKE: Yes.

MR. GARRITY: And if there's

anybody here who has questions — I know

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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some people don't like getting up. You can

always put it in writing and send it in,

and they will respond to it, as well.

MR. FAULKNER: And they send that

to Syrette's office? Is that where the

questions will go?

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Yeah,

whoever the contact person was on the

Notice of Completion. It might have been

Syrette.

MR. FAULKNER: So Syrette at the

Town Planner's office. But if they come to

the wrong place, we can just forward them

on, right?

MS. PACELLA: Yes.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Syrette

Dym, Director of Planning in the Town House

here, and you can reach her at 277-5366 if

you have any questions that you want to ask

her regarding this process from the

development.

MR. O'ROURKE: I'm just wondering

if there's any other public comment.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Yes.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MS. KYUN: Polly Kyun from

Heritage Hills. This is a follow up, I

think, on the first lady's questions about,

I guess, the economics of it. These units,

I believe, are for sale — yes?

I was wondering how they will

compare with those at Heritage Hills, both

as to size, square footage, and the market

they are aimed for; whether it's the same,

or perhaps more upscale, or perhaps more

modest? Just a point of information.

Thank you.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you.

Any other questions?

MS. CRISPINELLI: I don't have a

question.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Step up.

We have our policy and

procedure.

MS. CRISPINELLI: My name is Lynn

Crispinelli, and I just have a comment. I

do a tremendous amount of real estate in

Somers, and I have to say that I get the

question all the time from people coming

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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2 out of town to look to move to our area.

3 Where do I go to do my grocery shopping?

4 And I have to say that I really

5 wish that I could say we have a phenomenal

6 DeCicco's right here for all your shopping

7 needs. I mean, it's a big thing. People

8 commute from the City. They commute from

9 White Plains, and they don't like to come

10 home and think they have to drive, you

11 know, all the — to Danbury or — I mean,

12 Goldens Bridge, I think they got — that

13 A&P is horrible, so I wouldn't even send

14 anybody there. Or also if you go into

15 Yorktown or all the way up to Somers

16 Commons. I mean, it's a haul for people,

17 and I think that there's a real need for

18 it. And I think that it would be a real

19 asset to our Town to have something like

20 that right here as part of this plan.

21 MR. CL1NCHY: Thank you.

22 SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Lynn,

23 there are many in the room here and in the

24 Town that really are looking forward to a

25 grocery store at that location, and as the

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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applicant mentioned, it does certainly meet

a community need as you told us.

MR. PARKER: My name is Gary

Parker. I'm a resident of Somers for 26

years. I recently just sold my house, and

now I live at Heritage Hills. I'm a

realtor here, like Lynn, and I'm not as

good as Lynn. I'm so close though.

(Laughter.)

MR. PARKER: So having -- when we

are taking customers around, Lynn is

correct. The first question is, where do

we go shopping? Personally, you know, I'm

in my car going to Brewster, or I'm going

up to Danbury. I'm going to Yorktown, and

I tell the customers the same thing. This

is where your major shopping is going to be

for food, and I say everything is only 10

or 15 minutes away, as everything is here.

But it would be a great enhancement not

only for our lifestyles -- you would save

me a lot of trips, personally. But it

would also help with the values of our

properties here which is important.
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Also, the tax payers with us

losing Pepsi would maybe compensate for

some of that until that Pepsi void is

filled. So I think it would be very nice

to have this wonderful plan, and — with

DeCicco's or equivalent would be a

wonderful enhancement to this Town.

That's all I have to say.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Thank you.

All right.

Any other questions?

The Board? No.

All right. Well, I have one.

It's a tough one. I don't need an answer

tonight, but in your proposal is to

develop these units as condos as far as

the tax base goes. So the question would

be, the Town would be looking for a

fee-simple structure for these properties,

and the question would be: Is that going

to happen or what is the thought process

behind them, fee simple versus condo?

MR. GARRITY: Thank you.

MR. O'ROURKE: That's a question

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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that we have to answer and, in fact,

Mr. Baroni and I have discussed this

because there's different ways of looking

at it and different ways of addressing the

issue and different ways of looking at the

amenity package, all of which we have to

address in the DEIS — I mean in our

FEIS — excuse me.

It's a question that — you're

not the first community to raise that

issue, and it's something that we have to

address.

MR. GARRITY: Okay. Good.

MR. O'ROURKE: I don't know

whether there is any other public comment.

Earlier today, I received an email. I

think it was from Barbara Sherry that we

were asked — she was asked to pass it

along to the applicant and its consultants

so when we received it — and we have

absolutely no objection to extending

written comment to March 25th and, in fact,

if there was a necessity for, you know,

even a longer little period of time, we

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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would do that as well.

However, what we would

respectively request is that in connection

with oral comment, that the opportunity

has been extended this evening.

Everyone's had the opportunity. We would

respectively request that all comment that

the public hearing close for that, leave

it open for written comment for weeks.

But we want to get through the process,

and that is something that we are

certainly not foreclosing the opportunity

for written comment, which of course we

have to respond to, so that would be our

question.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Well, we

are at the point in our proceedings where

we would either close or continue the

public hearing. As I mentioned, our

intention was to just adjourn the public

hearing, continue it, and that's based on a

number of factors, at least from my point

of view.

Number one, this was the first

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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offering of a public hearing on a major

development on our Town. It's not the

best weather. I don't know that we have

gotten the best population here at the

meeting, so for, you know, for that reason

alone would be reason enough for me to

continue the public hearing, and I'll

defer to any of the other councilmen to

way in.

And Roland, we do need to amend

the date regarding written comment on the

SEQRA notification, and that date let's

say would be -- that would be ten days

after we close the hearing, right?

MR. BARONI: My feeling is -- and

the weather is the first good reason, but

even if it was the middle of the summer,

you haven't yet received comment letters

from County Planning, DEC, DEP, the

Attorney General's office, Riverkeeper, and

even your own Planning Board. And you're

going to surely get comments from most, if

not all of those agencies, and as you do,

they may well engender more questions that

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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you have, that the public has, and if you

were to prematurely, I think, close the

public hearing tonight, you lose that

forum, that opportunity to make those

additional questions part of your record,

unless you do put them in writing. But you

should be able to ask them verbally at your

meeting. All the reason being, why you

should go over to April 9th.

MR. O'ROURKE: I guess, my only

concern with that is that if you wish to

leave it open for all comment — putting it

out for yet another month, that's a long

period of time. I know you have a meeting

next week. You could leave it open for

oral comment until next week. Close it to

oral comment, leave it open for a period of

time for written comment. And quite

frankly, as far as the Planning Board is

concerned, regardless of when the Planning

Board puts in its comments, we are going to

have to answer them. I mean, we have to,

so, I guess, our point is that we have a

stenographer. There's cost attended to all

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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of this. Obviously we are paying for the

town's consultants as well. If there was a

line and there was a curfew and people

wanted to keep talking, that's one reason

to keep it open for oral comment. We don't

have that here.

MR. GARRITY: Well, I think, we

definitely — it's a decent sized project,

and like Mr. Morrissey said, it's not the'

best of weather. I mean, we are definitely

going to keep it open until next week, and

then next week —

MR. BARONI: You mean next month.

MR. GARRITY: Well, I mean,

public comment, we can hold over — we

don't need to decide when we are closing

today. We can hold it over —

MR. CIRIECO: He's recommending

that we hold it over until —

MR. BARONI: Well, you do need to

decide, because it won't be on next week's

meeting agenda.

MR. CIRIECO: You need two weeks

to put it on.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. GARRITY: Oh, we need two

weeks to put it on. Oh, okay.

MR. BARONI: You're not likely to

receive the comments from as many —

MR. GARRITY: No, you're right.

Gotcha.

MR. BARONI: — between now and

next week.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Mr.

O'Rourke, I mean, with all due respect, you

know, I understand that. And with the

charge of being, you know, we as the Town

Board, we serve at the pleasure of the

residents here. So, you know, whether —

we are not taking into consideration this

non-referred -- yes, we may have to bring

them back, but I think the public is best

served by continuing the public comment

period to April 9th, and then with the

anticipation of closing it on that date,

and then extending it another 10-day

comment period after that.

So do we need a motion, or...

MR. BARONI: Yes, motion to
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adjourn both public hearings until

April 9th.

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: I make a

motion to extend to April 9th on both

issues. The DEIS and the proposed Local

Law amendment.

All in favor?

(Members: Aye.)

SUPERVISOR MORRISSEY: Any"

opposed?

So moved.

Thank you, Mr. O'Rourke.

MR. O'ROURKE: Thank you very

much.

(Time noted: 8:02 p.m.)
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foregoing proceedings, took stenographic

notes of the same, and that the foregoing is
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whole thereof.
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3:3;52:17;56:18 48:23 14:8 weather-wise (1) 18:1;19:1;20:1;21:1;

told (1) tributaries (1) use (2) 3:3 22:1;23:1;24:1;25:1;
50:3 42:13 30:24;41:21 Wednesday (1) 26:1;27:1;28:1,24;

Tom (2) tried (1) used (3) 40:19 29:1;30:1;31:1;32:1;
21:16;37:6 14:18 17:23 ;28:20;33;19 week (6) 33:1;34:1;35:1;36.T;

tonight (9) trips (1) utilities (3) 41:21;55:16,17; 37:1;38:1;39:1;40:1;
3:2;9:15,18;24:4;
28:4;30:10;42:25;

50:23
true (1)

7:8;12:18;23:16 56:12,13;57:9 41:1;42:1;43:1;44:1;
weeks (3) 45:1;46:1,20;47:1;

51:16;55:4
took (1)

59:11
truly (1)

V 53:10;56:24;57:3 48:1;49:1;50:1;51:1;
week's (1) 52:1;53:1;54:1;55:1;

59:9 19:4 Valley (1) 56:22 56:1;57:1;58:1;59:1
top (1) try (3) 26:21 welcome (2) workable (1)

34:24 28:10;29:22;43:21 values(1) 2:3;25:16 20:14
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worked (1) 15 (1)
12:16 50:20

working (6) 15,000 (1)
10:11;12:24;20:15; 26:23
23:3;24:10;46:3 16 (1)

worried (2) 43:9
33:13;35:23 16th (1)

worst (1) 44:23
34:9 170 (1)

wow (2) 3:8
35:32;37:18 170-13 (1)

writing (4) 3:9
9:16;42:24;47:3; 170-130 (1)
55:7 3:11

written (7) 18 (1)
30:13;45:6;52:23; 26:12
53:10,14;54:12; 18,000 (1)
55:19 26:10

wrong (2) 19,000 (3)
25:5;47:14 5:24;11:10;21:17

19th (1)
X 3:19

XYZ(l) 2
22:23

2013 (1)
Y 26:18

2015 (3)
years(6) 2:4;3:19;59:19

11:14;14:18;17:21; 202 (4)
19:16;39:21;50:6 5:13,17;6:5;13:13

York (5) 25th (2)
42:13,15,18;43:24; 44:16;52:23
59:8 26(2)

Yorktown (5) 43:8;50:5
33:6,7,9;49:15; 277-5366 (1)
50:16 47:19

Z 3

zone (2) 33 (3)
21:7;31:13 6:17,18;12:5

Zoning (4)
3:8;5:2;13:9;32:18 4

1 4,000 (1)
17:25

10(2) 40,000 (1)
45:6;50:19 24:19

100 (7)
11:25;16:9;21:8; 5
27:15;32:22;39:12;
41:9 5(2)

100-foot (3) 29:23;59:19
20:22;21:2;39:13 5,000 (1)

107 (1) 17:25
6:8 50 (1)

10-day (1) 12:12
57:22 50-30 (1)

11th (1) 12:3
45:3 52 (3)

12th (1) 6:17,19;12:5
44:22 5th (1)

2:4

60 (2)
27:19;28:7

60,000 (1)
22:7

8

8:02 (1)
58:16

80(5)
10:23;12:2;27:21,
23;28:7

80,000 (2)
21:25;22:7

80-unit (2)
4:19;6:13

9th (5)
45:5;55:10;57:20;
58:3,5
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Somers Crossing - Town Board Regular Meeting

MR. MORRISSEY: We are going to reopen

or continue our Somers Crossing public

hearing on the Draft Environmental Impact

Statement, and the Proposed Local Laws to

amend Chapter 170.

Mr. O'Rourke, welcome.

MR. O'ROURKE: Thank you, and good

evening to everyone, and to the members of

the public.

As the supervisor has stated, this is

the continuation of a public hearing on the

ELS -- the draft ELS in connection with

rezoning, so as to create an MFR, Multifamily

Residential downtown hamlet district on 26.68

acres, which is bordering Route 202 across

from the main entrance of Heritage Hills and

then force that on Route 100 north of the

police station.

What's being proposed ultimately and the

proposed action that is the subject of the

DEIS is of course the text change, so as to

permit this development to go forward and as

proposed and what has been examined thus far

is 80 multifamily housing units together with

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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the grocery store, a neighbor grocery store

of approximately 19,000 square feet.

The public hearing has been opened. It

is continued until this evening, and as I

stated previously, the format for this is

that we are not here to answer questions.

That is something by law, we are to answer in

the preparation of the Final Environmental

Impact Statement, so we apologize in advance

that we are not here to answer questions, but

nevertheless --

MR. CLINCHY: But you did such a good

job of that the last time.

(Laughter.)

MR. O'ROURKE: Well, thank you very

much.

And so we are here to elicit, solicit

comment, all of which will be addressed in

our FEIS.

MR. MORRISSEY: Okay. And with that,

I'11 invite any member of the public that has

a comment or statement or question regarding

the Draft Environmental Impact Statement

that's been out there.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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2 Come up to the mic, please.

3 MR. BLOOM: My name is Mike Bloom. I'm

4 a resident of Somers. I'm also the chair of

5 the Somers Energy and Environmental

6 Committee, and the only comment that I have

7 is — actually, Jim and I were speaking

8 earlier — is, has this particular

9 development looked at the possibility of

10 actually starting with solar versus

11 retrofitting solar after the development.

12 We are a member of the Economic

13 Improvement Committee, and that's basically

14 an organization that puts together funding

15 for renewable energy and for solar projects.

16 It's very attractive. It's very competitive,

17 and they are prepared to actually sit down

18 with you and possibly talk about that kind of

19 capability in the development.

20 So that's my only comment, is to

21 consider the use of renewable energy as part

22 of the development project.

23 MR. MORRISSEY: Thank you. Yes.

24 MR. DULONG: Thank you, Supervisor

25 Morrissey, and members of the board, members

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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of the public.

I'm Michael Dulong. I'm a staff

attorney with Hudson Riverkeeper. I believe

my coworker. Misty Duval, was here at the

last meeting. She discussed the issue that

I'm probably going to repeat tonight.

Riverkeeper is a nonprofit member supported

organization dedicated to protecting the

Hudson River, and the drinking supply that

supplies 9 million New York City, Hudson

Valley residents.

As a signatory to the 1997 Watershed

Agreement, New York City Watershed Agreement,

we are committed to ensure that development

projects in the watershed do not adversely

affect the water resources that supply your

drinking water.

We are still reviewing the DEIS,

specifically the Stormwater Pollution

Prevention Plan, and we plan to submit

detailed written comments.

But tonight, I just want to call your

attention back to the 1.1 acres of permanent

wetland buffer disturbance. Wetland buffers

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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are critical to the protection of wetlands

from construction impacts and

post-development storm water runoff impacts.

They provide water quality functions like

nutrient update, infiltration, reducing

erosion, and maintaining the chemical and

physical and biological integrity of waters.

The Applicant and the.DEIS has not

satisfied the SEQRA requirement to review all

reasonable alternatives that could get this

project out of that wetland buffer. Except

for the no-action alternative and the

no-zoning change alternative, the applicant

only evaluated alternatives that would result

in that 1.1 acres of disturbance, so I

respectfully submit that this board has the

duty to require the applicant to look at

those alternatives. Any alternative, such

as, reconfiguration of the grocery store

parking lot, construction of a multi-level

parking lot or parking structure, or scaling

back the development, especially the

residential development to get out of the

buffer.

Schmieder & Meister inc. (845) 452-1988
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In addition to that SEQRA requirement,

the town code actually mandates that the

board has to reject the application unless

the applicant can show that there is no

feasible on-site alternative.

And, again, I would respectfully submit

that that burden has not been met yet. They

haven't even looked at the alternatives that

could, sort of, scale this project back, get

it out of the buffer.

So bottom line, that's our main concern

and we are happy to discuss it with you or

with the applicant in the future. Thank you.

MR. CLINCHY: Do you have a written

summary of your comments that you can forward

to us?

MR. DULONG: We can. We are going to

submit those by the end of the comment

deadline, but I would be happy to submit them

tomorrow if you like.

MR. CIRIECO: A letter was submitted,

right?

MR. MORRISSEY: Whatever is convenient.

MR. DULONG: We are going to submit a --

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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2 MR. CIRIECO: I thought a letter was

3 submitted.

4 MR. DULONG: 1 don't believe --

5 MR. BARONI: DEP, DEC, and the local

6 planning board.

7 MR. DULONG: So we will submit those.

8 MR. M0RR1SSEY: Okay.

9 MR. DULONG: Thank you.

10 MR. CLINCHY: Sorry. I was off on my

11 time.

12 MR. MORRISSEY: Any other comments

13 regarding the Draft Environmental Impact

14 Statement?

15 I will just mention that I did get a

16 comment in an email from a resident who was

17 telling me that it takes her an inordinate

18 amount of time at present to go from west on

19 202 through the hamlet to get down to 138.

20 And her comment was, she can't imagine what

21 it's going to be like with 80 units and a

22 19,000 square foot grocery store to navigate

23 that same roadway, and she said that she sees

24 nothing in anything that has been written

25 about any turning lanes or issues of that

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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nature.

So I guess the question would be, is the

applicant going to address the increase in

traffic flow as projected by your

development?

MR. O'ROURKE: And the answer is, yes.

MR. MORRISSEY: We just did.

MR. O1ROURKE: And we will of course

address all the questions that are raised.

That's our obligation.

MR. CLINCHY: Mr. O'Rourke, we said

right from the start, of course, traffic and

protection of the water supply are the two

really big things in front of you.

The other night I was speaking to a

community group. One of the questions that

came up to me was about this development and

I wasn't able to answer the question, and I

don't know if this is the appropriate time

for it.

They were asking me what the affordable

housing component of the development is. I

don't know if that is part of this now, or

that comes later. I wasn't able to answer

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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the question the other night.

MR. O1ROURKE: That also is an issue

that has to be addressed in the FEIS. It has

been raised, yes.

MR. CLINCHY: So it will be raised?

MR. O'ROURKE: Yes, we have to answer

that.

MR. CLINCHY: Thank you.

MR. MORRISSEY: Actually, some of our

planning board members have asked that

question as well.

MR. CIRIECO: So the planning board had

talked about density issues, set back issues,

how it will be taxed, talked about the

wetland buffer, and I think we mentioned

parking as well. I think all that is going

to be addressed in the — as part of your

requirement.

MR. O'ROURKE: Yes.

MR. MORRISSEY: We received quite a

number of comments from DEP, DEC about

density issues, so it appears there's some

work to be done answering a lot of those

questions.

Schmieder & Meister inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. O'ROURKE: That is what — it's the

beauty and the beast of the process, but

obviously what is required of us and that's

the way the legislature saw fit to set up the

SEQRA process. And while it has been

criticized roundly, at the same time,

however, it does provide for a written

documentation to make sure that the issues

raised are addressed, and obviously that is

something that we have to do.

MR. CLINCHY: Going forward, how long

would you estimate it would take now to

answer all those and create a final document?

MR. O'ROURKE: Ms. Von Ohlsen is here.

I think she's hoping to finish it next week.

(Laughter.)

No, I'm being very facetious.

MR. CLINCHY: She just got real red.

(Laughter.)

MR. O'ROURKE: Well, Mr. Boniello is

suggesting that, but, you know, in all

seriousness, obviously what we have to —

what happens is the stenographer gives us a

transcript. There's a grouping of the

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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questions so as to make sure that they are

properly grouped, and then there's an answer.

I don't -- Bonnie, do you want to address

that, or shall we --

MR. CLINCHY: Just give us an idea.

MR. BONIELLO: Just a quick answer to

that. While we are working on the answers to

the FEIS, that in all likelihood will take

probably 2 to 3 months by the time we get the

comments. There will be a comment period,

say ten days after today. Then it has to be

obviously given some thought, arranged, and

taken care of on Bonnie's end.

But while we are doing that, we will

also be talking to the planning board. A lot

of the questions that have been brought up,

basically has to do with site design.

MR. CLINCHY: Right.

MR. BONIELLO: Whether it be parking,

whether it be traffic, whether it be

wetlands, encroachments, etc. So that's what

we are going to be spending out time on. I

hope to get on the agenda definitely for next

month with the planning board, and we are

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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2 going to start nailing down some of these

3 issues.

4 MR. CLINCHY: So people could expect

5 that if they want to come to the planning

6 board meeting —

7 MR. BONIELLO: Absolutely.

8 MR. CLINCHY: — these discussions as it

9 develops over the course of time.

10 MR. BONIELLO: Absolutely. That's where

11 the give and take comes. That's where we

12 listen. This has been two years of basically

13 putting the plan out there, and we listen to

14 the comments. We haven't changed anything.

15 There have been a lot of comments made. We

15 basically have a pretty good idea of what

17 needs to be changed. What suggestions do

18 work. What don't work. So the ones that we

19 are able to incorporate, we are definitely

20 going to incorporate.

21 MR. CLINCHY: I'm sure people look

22 forward to those discussions.

23 MR. BONIELLO: Thank you.

24 MR. MORRISSEY: Any other comments?

25 I would just like to add my comments.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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and I've said them from early on in the

project. Personally, as a resident, a member

of the Town Board, I do think 80 units is

quite dense for what's being proposed.

In addition, I believe this project

should be taxed as fee simple. That they are

not condos. They are townhouses. And that

when, and, if possible, you get any

encroachments out of wetlands, so -- I know

those are elements that you are to address

and will address.

And I just want to echo Mr. Bloom's

comment about alternative energy sources,

solar. You know, you have a 19,000 square

foot building that you're building,

presumably with roof space that you may want

to explore, you know, putting some solar

panels or some type of renewable energy.

MR. CIRIECO: And I share Rick's

sentiments, but I want to key off of Michael

just for a moment about trends, right? You

talked about budget trends. You talked about

revenues, and that revenue growth is not that

— it's flattening.

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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One of the things that we face as a town

as well, is that it sets values of the

(inaudible) and this type of project brings

revenue and I think that's an important

aspect, you know, to this as well. And

that's why, you know, I find it an

interesting proj ect.

That being said, you know, we have a

whole bunch of issues that have to be ironed

out, and I think we have a commitment on both

sides to work amenable to do that. But all

in all, between the store, upgradeables, and

balancing out some of these issues, this

becomes a very interesting project for us.

MR. BARONI: Just to pick up for a

moment on something that I noticed in the

Planning Board comments about the parking for

the grocery store.

MR. CIRIECO: Right, the spaces.

MR. BARONI: I can tell you from a

personal experience in Armonk, the DeCicco's

there — should it be a DeCicco's, they hire

many employees because they have a full

kitchen. They have prepared foods. They

Schmieder & Meister inc. (845) 452-1988
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have a cafeteria.

MR. CIRIECO: Good point.

MR. BARONI: They have more than 47

employees, so the thought that this site

could only have 47 parking spaces and it's

the same size store, that's not doable. So

you shouldn't be looking at your parking

standard to make sure that the new concept in

food stores, much different than when the

ordinance was written. These store have many

employees because they offer many other

services that the traditional food store from

30 years ago never contemplated.

MR. CIRIECO: That's a good observation.

MR. MORRISSEY: Yeah, and there are —

some of the other comments I think from the

Planning Board was to study -- I can't

remember where -- the placement of the

parking behind the store and have -- and what

I thought was a pretty good idea was to

eliminate coming out of the Somerstown

Shopping Center, that exit, and have all the

traffic routed to the traffic light, to make

a left or right turn.

Schmieder & Meister inc. (845) 452-1988
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But the other thing that I would

encourage you to do, and I'm sure it's on

your to-do list. But you have a partner,

your neighbor there, on your southern

exposure and on your western exposure. They

are going to be an important partner in this

project so the sooner we can see some

agreements, arrangements on them buying in, I

think it would be better for all of us.

MR. O'ROURKE: And I don't want to sound

like a broken record, but we will address

that issue and we are well aware of it and

respect the comment. We know that it has to

be addressed, and will be.

MR. CLINCHY: I have just one quick

question for you, Mr. Boniello. If you can

just give me a yes or a no.

The units you proposed are geothermal.

MR. BONIELLO: Yes.

MR. CLINCHY: Would that include the

grocery store or no?

MR. BONIELLO: Right now it does, yes.

MR. CLINCHY: So all of it is proposed

to be geothermal?

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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MR. BONIELLO: Yes. That technology is

even being used on cominercial applications .

MR. CLINCHY: Okay. Yeah, I just wasn't

sure about the grocery store.

MR. BONIELLO: And the comment about the

solar energy, we'll definitely look into

that. He's absolutely right, and this —

MR. CLINCHY: Yeah.

MR. BONIELLO: As far as the solar

energy, that's a part of the project that

really doesn't — we won't be running a

grocery store.

MR. CLINCHY: Right. I understand.

MR. BONIELLO: So the end user, we will

be talking to them and see if it's doable and

see if they have come across in other

projects that they — in other stores that

they run, and see where that goes.

MR. CLINCHY: But the project itself is

entirely geothermal?

MR. BONIELLO: Absolutely.

MR. CIRIECO: This may be premature, but

a question was asked whether the store was

going to be leased or sold. Have you

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988
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contemplated --

MR. BON1ELLO: It hasn't been finalized.

MR. CIRIECO: It hasn't been finalized.

MR. BONIELLO: It can go either way.

MR. CIRIECO: Okay.

MR. BONIELLO: One thing that I can tell

you is that we don't run grocery stores.

(Laughter.)

MR. MORRISSEY: So I'll ask one more

time if there are any other comments for the

DEIS, or the proposed Local Law to amend

Chapter 170 from the public this evening?

(No comments.)

Okay. Hearing none, I'm going to make a

motion to close the public hearing. I also

will note that there will be a 10-day-comment

period after we close the public hearing.

MR. BARONI: The public hearing on the

zoning should be adjourned further. You're

closing —

MR. MORRISSEY: Yeah, on the DEIS.

MR. BARONI: The hearing on the proposed

Local Law, you should adjourn that.

MR. MORRISSEY: Okay. So --

Schmieder & Meister Inc. (845) 452-1988



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Somers Crossing - Town Board Regular Meeting

MR. BARONI: Indefinitely until it comes

back —

MR. MORRISSEY: So we'll make a motion

to close the public hearing on the DEIS.

MR. FAULKNER: Second.

MR. MORRISSEY: All in favor?

MEMBERS: Aye.

MR. MORRISSEY: Any opposed?

(None.)

So move.

And I'll make a motion to continue the

public hearing on the proposed Local Law

pending further reports on the draft -- on

the final impact statement.

MR. FAULKNER: Second.

MR. MORRISSEY: All in favor?

MEMBERS: Aye.

MR. MORRISSEY: Any opposed?

(None.)

So move.

MR. O'ROURKE: Thank you very much.

MR. MORRISSEY: You're welcome.

(Time noted: 7:51 p.m.)
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CERTIFICATION

I, Barbara Ulbrich, Court Reporter and

Notary Public in and for the State of New

York, do hereby certify that I attended the

foregoing proceedings, took stenographic

notes of the same, and that the foregoing is

a true and correct copy of the same and the

whole thereof.

[Llbv^cL.

Barbara Ulbrich

Dated: April 9, 2015
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United States Department of the Interior

FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE
New York Field Office

3817 Luker Road
Cortland, NY 13045

Phone: (607) 753-9334 Fax: (607) 753-9699
http://www .fws.gov Inortheastlnyfo

To: Beth Evans Date: JUll 22,2015

USFWS File No:,~1~5,-",-0-",-,89"--!.7 _

Regarding your: _x_Letter Fax Email Dated: May 15,2015

For project: Somers Crossing Property

Located: 307 New York State Route 100

In Town/County: Town of Somers / Westchester County

Pursuant to the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (ESA) (87 Stat. 884, as amended; 16 U .S.C. 1531 et
seq.), the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service:

Acknowledges receipt of your "no effect" and/or no impact determination. No further ESA
coordination or consultation is required.

_x_ Acknowledges receipt of your determination. Please provide a copy of your determination and
supporting materials to any involved Federal agency for their final ESA determination.

Is taking no action pursuant to ESA or any legislation at this time, but would like to be kept
informed of project developments.

As a reminder, until the proposed project is complete, we recommend that you check our website
(http://www.fws.gov/northeastlnyfo/es/section7.htm) every 90 days from the date of this letter to ensure
that listed species presence/absence information for the proposed project is current. Should project
plans change or if additional information on listed or proposed species or critical habitat becomes
available, this determination may be reconsidered.
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June 26, 2015 
 
Somers Crossing LLC 
c/o Mr. Gus Boniello 
Boniello Land & Realty Ltd. 
165 Waccabuc Road 
Golden’s Bridge, New York 10526 
 
Re:  Somers Crossing LLC – Projected Real Estate Taxes (Condominium Basis) 
 307 Route 100 
 Section 17.15, Block 1, Lot 15.1 
 McGrath File #C1506123 
 
Dear Mr. Boniello: 
 
We have completed our preliminary analysis of the proposed condominium development property, in 
order to render an opinion concerning the likely assessed value of the property, valued according to 
New York State assessment regulations as stated in Section 339Y of the real property and Section 581 
of the real property tax law. Our analysis is presented within this restricted report that is intended for 
use only by you, for planning/negotiation purposes. This report is intended to comply with the 
reporting requirements set forth under Standard Rule 2-2(c) of the Uniform Standards of Professional 
Appraisal Practice (USPAP) for a Restricted Use Appraisal Report. As such, it represents only summary 
discussions of the data, reasoning and analyses that were used in the appraisal process to develop the 
opinions of value contained herein. These opinions and conclusions reported may not be understood 
properly without additional information contained within the work file of this property retained within 
our office. The depth of discussions within this analysis is specific to the needs of the client and for the 
intended use previously stated and should only be relied upon by a reader familiar with the captioned 
property. We are not responsible for any unauthorized use of this report.   
 
Our review of pertinent information relative to the captioned property indicated that it is comprised of 
approximately 26.69± acres of land proposed for a mixed-use development to be known as Somers 
Crossing. The scope of development provided to us by the subject property’s owner outlines two (2) 
distinct uses of the subject site, 1) a 19,000± square foot supermarket to be constructed along the 
property’s Route 202 frontage and 2) a 65 unit townhouse condominium project to be built on 15± 
acres of land along Route 100, adjacent to the Towne Centre at Somers.  
 
As requested, we have analyzed only the multi-family component of the proposed development 
herein. It is our understanding that all of the proposed townhouse condominium units will have two-
bedrooms, two-baths and one half-bath and that all will feature attached garages and oversized cedar 
decks. As presently conceived, there will be a total of 44 end-units and 51 units will feature unfinished 
walkout basements. 
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If the planned development is completed according to existing design guidelines provided to us by the 
developer, Somers Crossing will be benefitted by several physical attributes that differentiate it from 
existing townhouse condominiums in the Northern Westchester County market area. Firstly, the layout 
of the main living areas will be designed in an open concept style that is currently popular in single 
family home construction. Much of the existing townhouse inventory in the Town of Somers and 
Northern Westchester was built from the 1970s through early 1990s and, consequently, incorporated 
design elements that were en vogue at the time but have not aged well in the view of many younger 
market participants. Secondly, the kitchens and baths will feature high-end custom cabinetry, granite 
and marble countertops, marble floors (baths) and stainless GE appliances (kitchens). Thirdly, the 
townhouses will include premium features such as central vacuums, full security systems and L.E.D. 
light fixtures. Lastly, and most importantly in our opinion, the heating and cooling of the proposed 
townhomes will be provided via a highly efficient geothermal HVAC systems. Typically, older 
townhomes in the area feature either electric or oil heating systems that cost considerably more to 
operate than the geothermal systems planned for the subject dwelling units. The cumulative effect of 
these beneficial physical and design attributes will, in our opinion, create a significant price premium 
over existing inventory within both the sales and rental markets. 
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SOMERS CROSSING 
Included below are the features and specifications provided to us by the developer of the proposed 
development: 
 
EXTERIOR: 

 Paved asphalt driveways 
 All disturbed areas will be raked, seeded, and fertilized 
 Professionally landscaped foundation plantings with cedar mulch 
 3 foot bluestone walkway from driveway to front door 
 Extra-large rear deck with cedar decking and rails, including pressure treated support beams 
 Foil faced insulation installed on exterior between sheathing and siding (seams taped) 
 Minimal maintenance soffits and eaves 
 Certainteed landmark series architectural roof shingles (lifetime warranty) 
 Anderson 400 series tilt-wash windows with screens and grilles between glass 
 Aluminum seamless leaders and gutters 

 
FOUNDATION: 

 9 foot unfinished basement 
 Walk out basement (where applicable) 
 Fully poured concrete foundation, waterproofed below grade 
 Vapor barrier beneath concrete slab in basement 
 Exterior footing drain system 
 LVL (laminated veneer lumber) girder system in basement 

 
STRUCTURE: 

 Spray foam insulation in roof rafters, basement ceiling, and box beam ends 
 3/4" Sub-flooring 
 Engineered (TJI) floor system 
 Douglas fir framing 
 Plywood sheathing (1/2'' CDX) 
 2" x 6" Exterior walls (fully insulated) 

INTERIOR: 
 9 Foot ceilings on first floor 
 5 ¼" Architectural base molding 
 3 ½” Architectural door and window moldings 
 Direct vented fireplace 
 All hinged interior doors are solid core 
 Wainscoting in dining room with chair rail 
 Crown molding in dining room and living room 
 #I grade oak flooring (2 ¼“ wide) with 2 coats of polyurethane finish in all rooms 
 Ceramic tile in bathrooms, mudroom and laundry room 
 Oak tread staircase with oak rails and wrought iron balusters 
 Laundry room with washer and dryer hook-up 
 Cabinets above washer, dryer, and laundry sink 
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KITCHEN: 
 Stainless steel sink 
 Granite counter tops with backsplash 
 Custom cabinetry; glass front cabinets, slide-out garbage bin, 4 roll-out shelves, crown molding 

and custom designed center island 
 GE stainless steel appliances to include: dishwasher, built-in microwave, built-in double oven, 

42" built-in refrigerator, and 4-burner gas cook top 
 
PLUMBING: 

 Geothermal HVAC system with wireless programmable thermostat 
 2 Exterior frost free water spigots 

 
BATHS: 

 Custom cabinets 
 Free standing soaking tub in master bath 
 Mirrors over bathroom vanities 
 Kohler plumbing faucets and fixtures 
 Double sinks in master bath 
 Ceramic tile in all baths, except powder room 
 Marble floor in powder room with pedestal sink 
 Marble counter tops in all bathrooms, except powder room 
 Extra-large master bath shower with frameless clear glass enclosure 

 
ALARM SYSTEM: 

 L.E.D. keypads 
 Carbon monoxide detectors 
 Magnum Alert interface with heat, smoke, and motion detectors connected to central 

monitoring station 
 
CENTRAL VACUUM: 

 Vacu-Maid model P125 
 25' Hose plus attachments 

 
ELECTRICAL: 

 200 amp service 
 Copper interior wiring 
 16 Recessed LED light fixtures 
 Motion activated spotlight over garage 

 
UTILITIES: 

 4 Cable TV jacks 
 4 Telephone jacks 
 Automatic garage door openers 
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In arriving at the opinions of market value of the subject property for assessment purposes, we have 
been guided by the state assessment regulations as stated in Section 339Y of the real property and 
Section 581 of the real property tax law that states, in pertinent part: 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of law, real property owned or leased by a cooperative 
corporation or on a condominium basis shall be assessed for the purposes of this chapter at a 
sum not exceeding the assessment which would be placed upon such parcel were the parcel 
not owned or leased by a cooperative corporation or on a condominium basis . . . 

 
It is our opinion that Section 581 precludes assessing and appraising cooperative and condominium 
developments on the basis of actual market sales of individual apartments/units. Therefore we have 
estimated the market value of the proposed condominium development based upon the Income 
Capitalization Approach, assuming it would be operated as a rental apartment complex. As such, 
consideration was given to the unit sizes, amenities, features and layouts of the property so that a 
reasonable projection of market level rents and expenses could be formulated in our analysis. From 
the effective gross income, deductions were made for operating expenses based upon a review of 
those reported at other newly constructed multi-family developments in Westchester County. As the 
purpose of this assignment is to determine equitable assessment and equitable real estate taxes based 
there, we have adopted an equalized tax rate within the capitalization process. 
 
It is important to note that the value estimates rendered herein are based upon the definition of 
Market Value set forth in Title XI of FIRREA, 12CFR34.41 through 34.47 which is as follows: 
 

“The most probable price in terms of money which a property should bring in a competitive and 
open market under all conditions requisite to fair sale, the buyer and seller, each acting 
prudently, knowledgeably and assuming the price is not affected by undue stimulus.  Implicit in 
this definition is the consummation of a sale as of a specified date and the passing of title from 
seller to buyer under conditions whereby: 
 
A. Buyer and seller are typically motivated. 

 
B. Both parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what they consider their 

own best interest. 
 

C. A reasonable time is allowed for exposure in the open market. 
 

D. Payment is made in terms of cash in U.S. dollars or in terms of financial arrangements 
comparable thereto. 
 

E. The price represents a normal consideration for the property sold unaffected by special or 
creative financing or sales concessions granted by anyone associated with the sale.” 
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Opinion of Value, Rd. $25,250,000

Per Dwelling Unit (65 DUs) $388,500

Equalization Rate (2015 Tentative) 12.95%

Indicated Assessment $3,269,875

Average Indicated Assessment Per Unit (Rd.) $50,310

2015 Tax Rates - Per $1,000 of Assessed Value

County $26.85

Town $14.00

Special District - Somers Fire $5.37

Somers Central School District (Est.) $156.47

Total Tax Rate (Mill Rate) $202.69

Indicated Real Estate Tax Burden - Entire Property $662,758.88

Average Indicated Real Estate Tax Burden Per Unit (65 DUs) $10,196.29

INDICATED ASSESSMENT & REAL ESTATE TAX BURDEN

Proposed Condominium - Somers Crossing LLC - 307 Route 100 

Application of the income approach, with an overall capitalization rate (adjusted with an equalized tax 
rate) and utilizing market level rents and projected expenses indicates that the proposed property’s 
assessment and indicated real estate tax burden would be as follows:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Attached are summaries of the reported revenues and expense, comparable townhouse rentals within 
Northern Westchester County, our projection of income and expenses on a stabilized basis as well as 
pictures and maps pertaining to the subject property.   
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CERTIFICATION 
We certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief: 
 
 The statements of fact contained in this report are true and correct; 
 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions are limited only by the reported assumptions and 

limiting conditions, and are our personal, impartial and unbiased professional analyses, opinions, 
and conclusions; 

 We have no present or prospective interest in the property that is the subject of this report, and 
we have no personal interest with respect to the parties involved; 

 We have no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of this report or to the parties 
involved with this assignment. 

 Our engagement in this assignment was not contingent upon developing or reporting 
predetermined results. 

 Our compensation for completing this assignment is not contingent upon the development or 
reporting of a predetermined value or direction in value that favors the cause of the client, the 
amount of the value opinion, the attainment of a stipulated result, or the occurrence of a 
subsequent event; directly related to the intended use of this appraisal. 

 The reported analyses, opinions, and conclusions were developed, and this report has been 
prepared, in conformity with the requirements of the Code of Professional Ethics and Standards of 
Professional Appraisal Practice of the Appraisal Institute. 

 The use of this report is subject to the requirements of the Appraisal Institute relating to review by 
its duly authorized representatives. 

 Kevin M. Schick has made an drive-by inspection of the subject site proposed for development that 
is the subject of this report and has reviewed information provided by the ownership entity relative 
to the subject;  

 The appraiser(s) are competent and qualified to perform this appraisal assignment. 
 No one provided significant professional assistance to the persons signing this report. 
 We have performed no services as an appraiser or in any other capacity regarding the property that 

is the subject of this report within the three-year period immediately preceding acceptance of this 
assignment. 

 
If you have any questions regarding our analysis, please do not hesitate to contact our office.  We 
appreciate the opportunity of consulting with you on this matter. 
 
Respectfully, 
  
 
 
______________________ 
Kevin M. Schick 
Director – Tax Certiorari Appraisal 
NY State Certified General Real Estate Appraiser No. 46-49034 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
Following is a summary of salient factual data and of valuation conclusions. Value estimates presented 
herein are based upon the material in the report and the appraisers' background, knowledge, training, 
and experience. They have been developed and reached through the use of recognized appraisal 
theory, method, technique, and practice, and represent the appraisers' judgment and opinion with 
respect to the subject property as of the June 15, 2015 valuation date. 
 
Property Summary 
Address : 307 Route 100, Somers, NY 10589. 
 
Tax Lot I.D. : Section 17.15, Block 1, Lot 15.1, Town of Somers, Westchester County, 

New York. 
 
Type of Property : As proposed, a 15± acre portion of the subject property will be 

improved with a total of 65 2,200± square foot townhouse 
condominium units, each of which will have two-bedrooms, two baths 
and a half bath. 

 
Land Area : 15± acres of land area, or 653,400± square feet (land area estimated). 
 
Occupancy : As of the date of inspection, the proposed condominium units have not 

been constructed. 
 
Building Age/Condition : Upon completion of the planned renovations, the subject condominium 

units will be in excellent, brand new physical condition.  
 
Property Rights Appraised : Fee Simple interest. 
 
Assessed Valuation : The objective of this analysis is to establish the proper level of 

assessment for the property, hypothetically treating it as though the 
planned renovations were complete as of the May 1, 2015 valuation 
date for the Town of Somers.  

 
Zoning District : The owner of the property is currently petitioning the Town of Somers 

to change the present “R-80” and “R-40” zoning to a zone that will 
allow for multi-family development. 

 
Highest and Best Use : Not relevant. 
 
Marketing Time : 12 months. 
 
Flood Zone / Wetlands : According to GIS mapping data, portions of the property are located 

within a designated flood zone area and portions are encumbered by 
NYSDEC protected wetlands. See the attached Site Features Map. 
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NATURE OF THE ASSIGNMENT 
McGrath & Company, Inc. has been retained to estimate the market value of the fee simple interest, as 
well as equitable assessment levels and projected real estate tax burdens in the subject real property 
known as 307 Route 100, Somers, NY 10589.  The property consists of 26.69± acres of land proposed 
for a mixed-use development to be known as Somers Crossing. The scope of development provided to 
us by the subject property’s owner outlines two (2) distinct uses of the subject site, 1) a 19,000± square 
foot supermarket to be constructed along the property’s Route 202 frontage and 2) a 65 unit 
townhouse condominium project to be built on 15± acres of land along Route 100, adjacent to the 
Towne Centre at Somers. We are addressing only the multi-family component of the planned project 
within this analysis. The appraisal will address the physical, economic, governmental and marketing 
considerations affecting the value of the subject real property. 
 
 
INTENDED USERS 
Somers Crossing LLC, c/o Mr. Gus Boniello, Boniello Land & Realty Ltd., 165 Waccabuc Road, Golden’s 
Bridge, New York 10526 
 
 
APPRAISAL FOUNDATION STANDARDS 
This appraisal has been prepared to conform to the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal 
Practice (USPAP), adopted by the Appraisal Foundation. 
 
 
PURPOSE AND DATE OF APPRAISAL   
The purpose of this appraisal is to estimate the market value of the fee simple interest, as well as 
equitable assessment levels and projected real estate tax burdens, as of the May 1, 2015 valuation 
date (as stipulated by New York State) within the Town of Somers. 
 
 
COMPETENCY 
The appraiser performing this assignment is competent to complete this report, in accordance with the 
competency provision in USPAP. 

 
 
CURRENT OWNERSHIP & SALES HISTORY 
The present owner of record of the subject property is Somers Crossing LLC. The property was acquired 
by the current ownership on July 30th, 2012 for a reported consideration of $1,100,000.  
 
 
PROPERTY IDENTIFICATION (LEGAL DESCRIPTION) 
The subject property is situated on the western side (#307) of Route 100 in the Town of Somers, 
Westchester County, New York.  It is municipally identified on the official tax assessment maps and 
rolls of the Town of Somers as Section 17.15, Block 1, Lot 15.1.   
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DEFINITION OF REAL PROPERTY 
All interests, benefits, and rights inherent in the ownership of physical real estate; the bundle of rights 
with which the ownership of the real estate is endowed.  
Source:  The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 4th Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, Illinois, 2002. 

 
 
DEFINITION OF REAL ESTATE 
Physical land and appurtenances attached to the land, e.g., structures. An identified parcel or tract of 
land, including improvements, if any. 
Source: The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 4th Edition, Appraisal Institute, Chicago, Illinois, 2002. 

 
 
SCOPE OF THE APPRAISAL 
The scope of the appraisal encompasses the research and the extent of the analyses required to 
prepare an appraisal in accordance with the intended use of the report and in compliance with the 
Code of Ethics and the Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) of the Appraisal 
Foundation. 
 
To accomplish this assignment, the following scope of services was undertaken: 
 

 Inspected the subject property and surrounding area:  A cursory exterior inspection of 
the property was made on June 15, 2015.   
 

 Review of municipal records, assessment data, zoning and deed recordings and 
construction data provided to us by the subject ownership. 
 

 Review and comparison of expenses incurred at other, recently constructed, luxury 
townhouse condominium developments.  
 

 Research, review and comparison of comparable rents received at other townhouse 
condominium developments in the Northern Westchester County market area. 
 

 Development of the Income Capitalization Approach to value the property as though 
construction was complete as of the May 1, 2015 valuation date within the Town of 
Somers.   
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PROPERTY RIGHTS APPRAISED 
Real Estate is the physical land and appurtenances affixed to the land, e.g., structures. Real Property 
consists of all interests, benefits, and rights inherent in the ownership of physical real estate. 
 
A rental property is not always a complete parcel of real estate, which includes a complete bundle of 
rights, i.e., “fee simple” rights. When a property is leased, different interests are created, such as the 
“leased fee” interest and “leasehold” interest.  Since the property is yet to be constructed and is 
unencumbered by lease, we have valued the fee simple interest herein.  
 
The various “fee simple” and lease interests, as shown in The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 2002 
edition, are defined as follows: 
 

"Fee Simple" is defined as: Absolute ownership unencumbered by any other interest or 
estate; subject only to the limitations of eminent domain, escheat, police power, and 
taxation. 
 
"Leased Fee Estate" is defined as: An ownership interest held by a landlord with the 
right of use and occupancy conveyed by lease to others; usually consists of the right to 
receive rent and the right to repossession at the termination of the lease. 
 
"Leasehold Estate" is defined as: The right to use and occupy real estate for a stated 
term and under certain conditions; conveyed by a lease. 

 
 
PERSONAL PROPERTY, FIXTURES AND INTANGIBLE ITEMS 
This appraisal is of the real estate only, and excludes the value of any personal property, fixtures and 
intangible items. 
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HYPOTHETICAL CONDITIONS 
According to the 2014 Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), a hypothetical 
condition is “that which is contrary to what exists, but is supposed for the purpose of the analysis.  
Hypothetical conditions assume conditions contrary to known facts about physical, legal or economic 
characteristics of the subject property or about conditions external to the property, such as market 
conditions or trends, or about the integrity of the data used in the analysis.” 
 
The difference between whether a particular condition is an extraordinary assumption or a 
hypothetical condition depends upon what the appraiser knows about the particular condition in 
question. 
 
If an appraiser cannot verify a certain condition that is critical to the valuation but which he believes is 
true and has no reason to doubt is true, then the condition is an extraordinary assumption. If, on the 
other hand, an appraiser is asked to use a condition which he knows to be false but which is necessary 
for the analysis, then two things are required; the appraiser can use the condition as long as it meets 
the criteria in USPAP and the appraiser must not confuse the information with the known facts. The 
appraiser must clearly distinguish “false conditions’ from those other assumptions or conditions which 
are believe to be true. 
 

 We have valued the property as though construction of the planned improvements was 
complete as May 1, 2015, when, in fact, construction has not yet begun. 

 
EXTRAORDINARY ASSUMPTIONS 
According to the 2014 Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP), an extraordinary 
assumption is “an assumption, directly related to a specific assignment, which, if found to be false, 
could alter the appraiser’s opinions or conclusions. Extraordinary assumptions presume as fact 
otherwise uncertain information about physical, legal or economic characteristics of the subject 
property or about conditions external to the property such as market conditions or trends, or the 
integrity of the data used in the analysis.” 
 

 We are not experts in recognizing hazardous conditions and recommend that interested 
parties engage an environmental expert to survey their property. The valuation is 
predicated upon the property being free and clear of all debris and/or environmental 
hazards. None was observed at the time of inspection. 
 

 The value conclusions established herein are predicated on the extraordinary 
assumption that the information that was provided to us by the owner of the subject 
property and used to formulate our opinions of value is accurate and factual. 
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MARKETING PERIOD 
A reasonable marketing period takes into consideration current and expected market conditions and is 
generally considered the time from the date the property is listed, as of the effective date of this 
appraisal, to the date a contract for purchase and sale is executed. A generally accepted definition of a 
normal or reasonable marketing period is as follows: 
 
The amount of time necessary to expose a property to the open market, in order to achieve a sale. 
Implicit in this definition are the following characteristics: 
 

 The property will be actively exposed and aggressively marketed to potential purchasers 
through marketing channels commonly used by buyers and sellers of similar type 
properties. 

 
 The property will be offered at a price reflecting the most probable mark-up, over 

market value, used by sellers of similar type properties. 
 

 A sale will be consummated under terms and conditions of the definition of market 
value. 

 
In consideration of current market conditions and the subject building’s physical condition, functional 
utility, size and suburban location, it is our opinion that marketing time for the subject property, if 
reasonably priced and professionally marketed, would be approximately 12 months. 
 
 
REASONABLE EXPOSURE TIME 
Exposure time precedes the effective date of appraisal, and may be defined as: The estimated length of 
time the property interest being appraised would have been offered on the market prior to the 
hypothetical consummation of a sale at market value, on the effective date of the appraisal; it is a 
retrospective estimate based upon an analysis of past events, assuming a competitive and open 
market. In arriving at an estimate of reasonable exposure time, the appraiser assumes an adequate, 
sufficient and reasonable effort to sell the real property. 
 
Owing to market conditions, preceding the effective date of this valuation, that were similar to present 
market conditions, i.e., similar supply and demand factors, stable local and regional economic 
conditions, similar availability and cost of financing, etc., and based upon information gathered 
through sales verification, our daily activity in the real estate market and interviews with market 
participants, it is our opinion that a reasonable exposure time for the subject property, would have 
been twelve (12) months. 
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2015

County 26.851757

Town 13.998739

Special Districts

Somers Fire 5.365600

School Districts

   Somers CSD (Estimated at 2% Increase) 156.470210

Total 202.686306

Equalization Rate (Prior Year) 13.08%

Equalized Tax Rate 2.65%

ASSESSMENT DATA 
The current assessment on the property of $158,375 equates to an equalized value of $1,222,973. The 

objective of this analysis is to establish the proper level of assessment for the property, hypothetically 
treating it as though the planned townhouse condominium units were complete as of the May 1, 2015 
valuation date for the Town of Somers. 
 
EQUALIZED TAX RATE CALCULATIONS 
The level of assessment of the proposed townhouse condominium units is currently unknown as the 
development is still within its planning stage. To establish equitable assessment levels on income- 
producing properties, it is an accepted appraisal technique to exclude the actual (projected) real estate 
taxes as a line-item expense and instead to reflect their impact on value via the adoption of an 
equalized tax rate. In theory, when the equalized tax rate is added to the overall capitalization rate, the 
indicated value is reflective of an equitable tax levy.  Our calculations with respect to the equalized tax 
rate are included below.   
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The total tax rate is $202.69 per $1,000 of assessed value. 
 
ZONING DATA 
The subject property is situated in a district designated “MG; Apartment Houses – Low Density” by the 
zoning ordinance of the City of Yonkers, as amended to the dates of appraisal.  Since the property is 
being valued for a tax certiorari analysis, a complete recitation of the zoning requirements is not 
deemed necessary and, accordingly, has been omitted.  
 
HIGHEST AND BEST USE 
The value of improved property is estimated in terms of its highest and best use, taking into 
consideration what contribution, if any, the improvements are making to the value of the total 
property. If the value of the site should exceed the value of the improved property, the value of the 
existing improvements is worthless. The highest and best use as improved may involve its continued 
maintenance, its renovation, its expansion, its partial or total demolition, or a combination of these 
uses. The appraiser’s primary consideration is finding the use that maximizes the income to the 
property on a long-term basis.   
 
For the purpose of this analysis, an opinion as to Highest and Best Use is not relevant. 
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INCOME CAPITALIZATION APPROACH 
The Income Capitalization approach, one of the three traditional approaches to value, is based upon the 
premise that value is directly related to potential income. Generally speaking, the higher the net income 
of a given property, the higher its’ value. Thus, from an investors' viewpoint, the earning power of a 
particular property is the critical element affecting value. Income-producing real estate can, therefore, 
be valued based upon the present dollar value of a probable anticipated income stream. The various 
techniques of the income capitalization approach allow the appraiser to do just this. The income 
approach consists of several methods and techniques which provide the appraiser with the appropriate 
procedures and tools from which to estimate value based upon income. 
 
Like the cost and market data approaches, the income approach is related to basic appraisal principles.  
Anticipation is fundamental to this approach, as value is created based upon the expected or 
anticipated future benefits to be derived. Value is defined as the present worth of such future benefits.  
Anticipation is also inherent in the appraiser's understanding of investors' expectations regarding 
income, value and expense requirements. 
 
Direct Capitalization  
Direct capitalization is defined as: 
 

 
1. "A method used to convert an estimate of a single year's income expectancy into an indication 

of value in one direct step, either by dividing the income estimate by an appropriate rate or by 
multiplying the income estimate by an appropriate factor.  
or  

2. A capitalization technique that employs capitalization rates and multipliers extracted from 
sales.  Only the first year's income is considered.  Yield and value change are implied but not 
defined".1 

 
In direct capitalization, there is no precise allocation made between return on and return of capital.  As 
implied in the definition, value change is implied but not defined. The method does not simulate 
investors' assumptions of forecasts regarding a holding period, pattern of income stream and change in 
value of the original investment. Implicit in the rates or factors utilized in direct capitalization is the 
investors' satisfactory rate of return and recapture of the capital invested. The rates and factors are 
derived from similar investment properties. 
 
The direct capitalization method is preferred when an appraiser can derive overall capitalization rates 
from reliable data on similar competitive properties. This method is appropriate when no great 
fluctuation in income is anticipated as it converts a single year's income, which should represent 
stabilized income, to value which is the case with the subject. 
 
Since the subject property is not yet complete, it was necessary to determine the applicable revenues 
and costs associated with the operation of the property, upon completion of the planned renovations.   

                                                      
1 Appraisal Institute, The Dictionary of Real Estate Appraisal, 4

th
 Ed., (Illinois:  The Appraisal Institute, 2002), page 83 
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VALUATION RATIONALE 
For the purpose of this analysis, it has been assumed that each of the subject condominium units has 
been rented at its optimum level and, therefore, the projection of apartment income is considered to 
be at its maximum. Accordingly, in the derivation of an overall capitalization rate, consideration was 
given to this projection and its impact on potential buyers/investors. Since maximum income is 
assumed to have been achieved with our projection of market level rents, the likelihood of atypically 
large increases in net revenues is not realistic. Older rental apartment developments with existing 
tenants, conversely, have the potential, in many cases, to significantly increase rents and/or decrease 
operating expenses, to increase net income. Units within older apartment buildings that are subject to 
rent controls, have the ability to significantly increase rent levels through capital improvement 
expenditures after municipal approval. Multi-family properties containing units with this inherent 
potential tend to warrant lower capitalization rates that buildings with maximized net income, such as 
the subject has been considered to be. 
 
 
 

COMPARABLE RENTS 
In order to determine fair and reasonable market rent for the various subject property condominium 
units, we have considered the following lease data. These comparable rentals represent space having 
utility comparable to the subject property, in whole or in part.   



 

Deck / Recent

Street # Street Name Unit # Post Office Complex BRs BAs Sq. Ft. Year Built Patio Finished Walkout Reno. Garage Outdoor Date Monthly Annual Per Sq. Ft.

36 Cotswold Drive N/A North Salem 2 2.1 2,600 1987 Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Feb-13 $3,500 $42,000 $16.15

125 Cross River Road Mount Kisco Riverwoods 2 3.1 3,040 1998 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Sep-14 $5,100 $61,200 $20.13

141 Ruxton Road Mount Kisco Riverwoods 2 2.1 2,135 1989 Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Sep-13 $4,500 $54,000 $25.29

141 Ruxton Road Mount Kisco Riverwoods 2 2.1 2,135 1989 Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Sep-14 $4,400 $52,800 $24.73

41 Weavers Hill N/A Mount Kisco Riverwoods 2 2.1 2,300 1987 Yes No No No Yes Yes Apr-14 $4,000 $48,000 $20.87

3 Fawn Ridge 3 Millwood Pheasant Run 2 2.1 2,092 1986 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,600 $43,200 $20.65

136 Bayberry Close N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 2,000 1986 No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,700 $44,400 $22.20

44 Brook Farm Close N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,640 1988 Yes No No No Yes Yes May-14 $3,600 $43,200 $26.34

8 Deer Run N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,469 1987 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,600 $43,200 $29.41

74 Pond View Lane N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,520 1987 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Aug-14 $3,600 $43,200 $28.42

129 Bayberry Close N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,653 1987 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Dec-13 $3,500 $42,000 $25.41

44 Brook Farm Close N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,640 1988 Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Jul-13 $3,500 $42,000 $25.61

11 Deer Run 11 Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,550 1986 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Jun-15 $3,500 $42,000 $27.10

66 Pond View Lane N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,244 1986 No Yes Yes No Yes Yes Sep-14 $3,500 $42,000 $33.76

8 Deer Run N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,469 1987 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Jan-14 $3,495 $41,940 $28.55

107 Rambling Brook Road 107 Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,244 1987 Yes No No No Yes Yes Jul-13 $3,450 $41,400 $33.28

16 Rambling Brook Road N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,244 1987 No No No Yes Yes Yes Jul-13 $3,400 $40,800 $32.80

79 Further Lane N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.0 1,549 1988 Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Dec-14 $3,350 $40,200 $25.95

22 Waters Edge N/A Chappaqua Old Farm Lake 2 2.1 1,244 1986 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Sep-14 $3,350 $40,200 $32.32

5 Lake Marie Lane N/A Bedford Hills Lakeside 2 1.1 1,800 1998 Yes No No No Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,400 $40,800 $22.67

102 Kensington Way N/A Mount Kisco Guard Hill 2 3.1 2,000 1987 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Jun-15 $3,500 $42,000 $21.00

1302 Regent Drive 1302 Mount Kisco Guard Hill 2 2.2 2,100 1987 Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,425 $41,100 $19.57

1602 Regent Drive N/A Mount Kisco Guard Hill 2 2.1 1,900 1987 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Aug-14 $3,400 $40,800 $21.47

3504 Victoria Drive N/A Mount Kisco Guard Hill 2 2.1 1,408 1987 Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Jul-14 $3,400 $40,800 $28.98

3903 Victoria Drive 3903 Mount Kisco Guard Hill 2 2.1 1,900 1987 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Sep-14 $3,400 $40,800 $21.47

11 Station Place 3 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.2 2,200 2006 Yes No No No Yes Yes Sep-13 $4,300 $51,600 $23.45

11 Station Place 4 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.2 2,200 2006 Yes No No No Yes Yes Sep-14 $4,300 $51,600 $23.45

11 Station Place 8 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.2 2,200 2006 Yes No No No Yes Yes Nov-14 $4,000 $48,000 $21.82

11 Station Place 3 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.2 2,200 2006 Yes No No No Yes Yes Nov-14 $4,000 $48,000 $21.82

11 Station Place 1 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.1 1,650 2007 Yes No No No Yes Yes Jun-14 $3,700 $44,400 $26.91

11 Station Place 2 Millwood Granite's Crossing 2 2.1 1,650 2006 Yes No No No Yes Yes Apr-13 $3,500 $42,000 $25.45

1005 Half Moon Bay Drive Croton-on-Hudson Discovery Cove 2 2.1 2,000 2004 Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Jun-13 $4,625 $55,500 $27.75

1005 Half Moon Bay Drive 1005 Croton-on-Hudson Discovery Cove 2 2.1 2,000 2004 Yes No Yes No Yes Yes Jul-14 $3,800 $45,600 $22.80

9 Club Court N/A Pleasantville Country Club 2 3.1 2,448 1991 Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Apr-15 $4,000 $48,000 $19.61
9 Club Court N/A Pleasantville Country Club 2 3.1 2,448 1991 Yes Yes Yes No Yes Yes Feb-13 $3,850 $46,200 $18.87

149 King Street 7 Chappaqua 2 2.1 1,536 1988 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Jan-14 $3,650 $43,800 $28.52

149 King Street 18 Chappaqua 2 2.2 1,664 1988 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Oct-14 $3,650 $43,800 $26.32

149 King Street 5 Chappaqua 2 2.1 1,682 1988 Yes No No Yes Yes Yes Jul-14 $3,600 $43,200 $25.68

149 King Street 7 Chappaqua 2 2.1 1,536 1988 Yes No Yes Yes Yes Yes Jul-14 $3,550 $42,600 $27.73

149 King Street 3 Chappaqua 2 2.1 1,540 N/A Yes Yes No Yes Yes Yes Mar-13 $3,500 $42,000 $27.27

AVG $3,730 $44,759 $25.04

MED $3,600 $43,200 $25.43

MIN $3,350 $40,200 $16.15

MAX $5,100 $61,200 $33.76

Comparable Two-Bedroom Townhouse Rentals - Northern Westchester County

Onsite Parking Inc. RentBasement

Based upon the comparable rents detailed above as well as the beneficial physical and design attributes 
of the proposed subject condominium units, a base market rent has been estimated at $4,000 per month. 
End units and units with walkout basement levels would, in our opinion, rent at a premium over and 
above the $4,000 per month concluded.  
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65

Income Deck /

Unit Type / Description Garage Patio Sq. Ft. # % Total Per DU/Mth

2BR, 2.1BA Townhome Attached Yes 2,200 65 100% $3,120,000 $4,000

Potential Rental Income 65 100% $3,120,000

Plus: Total Per DU/Mth

Rental Premium - End Unit - 44 Units $39,600 $75

Rental Premium - Walkout Basement - 51 Units $45,900 $75

Potential Gross Income $3,205,500 $4,110

Less:

Vacancy/Credit Loss @ 5.0% ($160,275)

Effective Gross Income $3,045,225

Expenses

Real Estate Taxes

Operating Expenses @ 10.0% $304,523 $4,685

Reserves for Replacement @ 2.5% $76,131 $1,171

Interior Repairs & Maintenance @ 2.5% $76,131 $1,171

Management Fees @ 3.0% $91,357 $1,405

R.E. Commissions @ 2.0% $60,905 $937

Total Before Real Estate Taxes $609,045

Net Operating Income $2,436,180

Capitalization 2015

Basic Overall Rate 7.00%

Equalized Tax Rate (Estimated) 2.65%

Equalized Overall Rate (Approx.) 9.65%

Opinion of Value, Rd. $25,250,000

Per Dwelling Unit (65 DUs) $388,500

Inc. in Cap. Rate

STABILIZED INCOME AND EXPENSES

Proposed Condominium - Somers Crossing LLC - 307 Route 100 

Dwelling Units

2015
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Opinion of Value, Rd. $25,250,000

Per Dwelling Unit (65 DUs) $388,500

Equalization Rate (2015 Tentative) 12.95%

Indicated Assessment $3,269,875

Average Indicated Assessment Per Unit (Rd.) $50,310

2015 Tax Rates - Per $1,000 of Assessed Value

County $26.85

Town $14.00

Special District - Somers Fire $5.37

Somers Central School District (Est.) $156.47

Total Tax Rate (Mill Rate) $202.69

Indicated Real Estate Tax Burden - Entire Property $662,758.88

Average Indicated Real Estate Tax Burden Per Unit (65 DUs) $10,196.29

INDICATED ASSESSMENT & REAL ESTATE TAX BURDEN

Proposed Condominium - Somers Crossing LLC - 307 Route 100 
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PROPOSED SITE PLAN 
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SITE FEATURES MAP 
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City of Rye Town of Poughkeepsie 
City of White Plains Town of Ramapo 
County of Dutchess Town of Rhinebeck 
County of Putnam Town of Rosendale 
County of Rockland Town of Rye 
County of Westchester Town of Southeast 
Town of Bedford Town of Somers 
Town of Blooming Grove Town of Ulster 
Town of Clinton Town of Wallkill 
Town of Cortlandt Town of Wappinger 
Town of Eastchester Village of Ardsley 
Town of East Fishkill Village of Brewster 
Town of Esopus Village of Briarcliff 
Town of Fishkill Village of Bronxville 
Town of Goshen Village of Irvington 
Town of Greenburgh Village of Mount Kisco 
Town of Harrison Village of Nyack 
Town of Hyde Park Village of Pleasantville 
Town of Kent Village of Port Chester 
Town of LaGrange Village of Rhinebeck 
Town of Lloyd Village of Tarrytown 
Town of Monroe Village of Wappingers Falls 
Town of Mount Kisco White Plains Urban Renewal 
Town of Mount Pleasant United States Postal Service 
Town of New Castle NYS Housing Finance 
Town of North Castle  
 
 



ENVIRONMENTAL AGENCIES AND LAND TRUSTS 
Adirondack Nature Conservancy 
Agricultural Stewardship Association 
American Farmland Trust  
Audubon Society 
Beaverkill Conservancy 
Black Rock Forest Consortium 
Butternut Association 
Castanea Foundation, Inc. 
Catskill Watershed Corp. 
Columbia Land Conservancy 
Croton Land Conservancy 
Delaware Co. Watershed Agricultural Council 
Dutchess Land Conservancy 
Friends of the Great Swamp 
Hershey Trust 
Hudson Highlands Land Trust 
Hudson Preserve 
Manitoga 
Mohonk Preserve 
NYS Dept. of Environmental Conservation 
NYC Dept. of Environmental Protection 
NY-NJ Trail Conference 
NYS Office of Parks Recreation & Historic Preservation 
Office of Parks, Recreation & Historic Preservation 
Open Space Institute 
The Conservation Fund 
The Nature Conservancy 
Trust for Public Land 
Saratoga Plan 
Scenic Hudson Land Trust 
Storm King Art Center 
Wallkill Valley Land Trust 
Westchester Land Trust 
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BIBBO ASSOCIATES, LLP
Consulting Engineers

Date of Tests:
Engineers:

Witnessed by:

Deep Test Results Page 1 

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

July 15, 2015
Tim Allen, P.E. & Sabri Barisser, P.E.
Mariyam Zachariah; NYCDEP
Robert Wasp; Woodard & Curran

4'-7'6" Medium to fine sands, 
some gravel, cobbles No Mottling

Depth To 
Water 7'0" Depth To 

Water None Encountered

8"-3'0" Compact medium to fine 
sands & silt 6"-5'6" Loose fine to medium 

sands, some silt

3'-4'0" Mottling 5'6"-12'6" Loose medium sands, 
some cobbles

Hole ID: 3 Hole ID: 4

0"-8" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

Depth To 
Water None Encountered Depth To 

Water None Encountered

6"-5'0" Fine sand some silt 6"-3'0" Compact fine sand and silt

5'-11'0" Loose medium to fine sand 3'0"-8'0" Medium to fine sand & silt 
Some cobbles

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Project: Somers Crossing
DEEP TEST RESULTS

Hole ID: 1 Hole ID: 2



BIBBO ASSOCIATES, LLP
Consulting Engineers

Date of Tests:
Engineers:

Witnessed by:

Deep Test Results Page 2 

Robert Wasp; Woodard & Curran

No Mottling

July 15, 2015
Tim Allen, P.E. & Sabri Barisser, P.E.

Fine to medium sand and 
gravel and cobbles

None Encountered

None Encountered

4'0"-11'0" Fine to medium sand and 
gravel and cobbles 6'6"-11'0"

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

Depth To 
Water None Encountered Depth To 

Water None Encountered

Mariyam Zachariah; NYCDEP

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

6"-4'0" Compact fine sand and silt 6"-6'6" Compact fine sand and silt

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

Hole ID: 7 Hole ID: 8

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock

6"-4'0" Loose medium sand, some 
silt 6"-4'6"

Depth To 
Water None Encountered Depth To 

Water

Loose fine sand, some silt

4'-12'0" Loose medium sand and 
gravel and cobbles 4'6"-12'0" Medium sand and gravel 

and cobbles

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Project: Somers Crossing
DEEP TEST RESULTS

Hole ID: 5 Hole ID: 6



BIBBO ASSOCIATES, LLP
Consulting Engineers

Date of Tests:
Engineers:

Witnessed by:

Deep Test Results Page 3 

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

July 15, 2015
Tim Allen, P.E. & Sabri Barisser, P.E.
Mariyam Zachariah; NYCDEP
Robert Wasp; Woodard & Curran

Depth To 
Water None Encountered Depth To 

Water None Encountered

6"-4'0" Fine sand some silt 6"-4'0" Fine sand some silt

4'0"-15'0" Loose medium sand and 
gravel, cobbles 4'0"-16'0" Loose medium sand and 

gravel, cobbles

Hole ID: 11 Hole ID: 12

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

Depth To 
Water None Encountered Depth To 

Water None Encountered

6"-2'6" Fine sand some silt 6"-1'6" Fine sand some silt

2'6"-10'6" Medium sand and gravel, 
some cobbles 1'6"-10'6" Loose medium sand and 

gravel, cobbles

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Project: Somers Crossing
DEEP TEST RESULTS

Hole ID: 9 Hole ID: 10



BIBBO ASSOCIATES, LLP
Consulting Engineers

Date of Tests:
Engineers:

Witnessed by:

Deep Test Results Page 4 

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered

July 15, 2015
Tim Allen, P.E. & Sabri Barisser, P.E.
Mariyam Zachariah; NYCDEP
Robert Wasp; Woodard & Curran

6"-11'0" Loose medium sand and 
gravel, cobbles

Depth To 
Water None Encountered

Hole ID: 15

0"-6" Topsoil

Depth: Description:

DepthTo 
Rock None Encountered DepthTo 

Rock None Encountered

6"-11'0" Loose medium sand and 
gravel, cobbles 6"-11'0" Loose medium sand and 

gravel, cobbles
Depth To 

Water None Encountered Depth To 
Water None Encountered

Depth: Description: Depth: Description:

0"-6" Topsoil 0"-6" Topsoil

Project: Somers Crossing
DEEP TEST RESULTS

Hole ID: 13 Hole ID: 14
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TOWN OF SOMERS 
October 2015 

 
 
AFFORDABLE UNITS  
 
Approved Units 
72 units -  Mews Phase 1 (built and occupied) 
75 units - Mews Phase 2 (built and occupied) 
  3 units - Wright’s Court  (2 units built; one unit occupied, 2nd unit in rent-up) 
   1 unit - Koegel Park  (Town Employee occupied) 
  2 units –North Country Homes (built and occupied)  
154 units approved (153 units built – 77 occupied)  
 
Units Under Discussion 
66 units – The Greens 
23 units -  Avalon / Planned Hamlet (of 152 townhouse units) 
16 units – Hidden Meadow 
  3 units Van Tassel House 
  1 Unit Reynolds House 
109 units under discussion 
 
263  Total units, approved, under discussion and review. 
 
All of the above numbers would apply to the Westchester County & Town of Somers IMA 
 
HOUSING SETTLEMENT 
 
Approved Units 
75 units - Mews Phase 2 (built and occupied) 
75 units approved  
 
Units Under Discussion 
66 units – The Greens 
16 units – Hidden Meadow 
  3 units Van Tassel House  
  1 unit Reynolds House 
86 units under discussion 
 
162 Housing Settlement Affordable Units  
 
Somers Housing Settlement Contribution 22% of Total Settlement Number of 750 
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Somers Crossing FEIS: Fee Simple and Condominium Comparison    3/10/16 

 

CONDO/66 Units (Proposed Action) 

Total Res. Assessment (AV) = $3,269,875 ÷ 65 units = $50,310 assessment per unit1 

Total Res. Assessment (AV) for 66 units = $3,269,875 + $50,310 = $3,320,185 

The 66-unit development is anticipated to generate a total of $779,976 in annual property taxes: 
 ($672,968 residential + $107,008 grocery = $779,976).   
 
Of this, $602,116 = total taxes to the school district. 
($519,509 residential + $82,607 grocery = $602,116). 
 
$672,968 Res. Taxes ÷ 66 units = $10,196 per unit. (+ common charges) 
 

Table 1: 
66-unit Condominium: 

Potential Property Tax Generation  

District Tax Rate per 
$1000 AV 

Assessed Value 
Residential 

Residential Tax 
Generation 

Assessed 
Value 

Commercial 

Commercial 
Tax 

Generation 

Total Taxes 
(Resid. + 

Commercial) 
County 26.85 $3,320,185 $89,147 $527,944 $14,175  $103,322  

Town 14.00 $3,320,185 $46,483  $527,944 $7,391  $53,874  

School 156.47 $3,320,185 $519,509  $527,944 $82,607  $602,116  

Fire 5.37 $3,320,185 $17,829   $527,944 $2,835  $20,664  

Total  

(66 units) 202.69         $3,320,185            $672,968 $527,944 $107,008  $779,976  

 
 

 
FEE SIMPLE/66 units: 
 
 $700,000 market value x 12.95% = $90,650 Assessed Value (AV) per unit 
 
$90,650 x 66 units = $5,982,900 total residential AV 
 
$5,982,900 total residential AV x 202.69 per 1,000 total tax rate = $1,212,673 ÷ 66 units = $18,374 per unit 
(+ common charges) 
 

                                                           
1 PROPERTY ASSESSMENT & REAL ESTATE TAX ANALYSIS, PROPERTY OF SOMERS CROSSING LLC, McGrath & Company Inc, (June 26, 2015) 



2 
 

 
$5,982,900 total residential AV x 156.47 per 1,000 (school tax rate) = $936,144 residential taxes to school 
district. 
 
$936,144 (residential) + $82,607 (store) = $1,018,751 total school tax generated from project. 
 

Table 2:  
School Tax Comparison 

 Cost per 
student 

Number of 
students 

Cost to District Total school taxes 
generated  
(res  + store) 

Surplus to school district 

CONDO $14,772 32 $472,704 $602,116   $129,412  
FEE 
SIMPLE 

$14,772 32 $472,704 $1,018,751  $546,047 
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HOULIHAN LAWRENCE, INC 
TOWNE CENTRE AT SOMERS, 104 VILLAGE SQUARE, SOMERS, NY 10589,  914.277.8040   Fax: 914.277.5037 

HoulihanLawrence.com 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
February 9, 2016 
 
 
 
To Whom It May Concern, 
 
I am writing this letter on behalf of the Boniello Development Corp. and in reference to the Somers Crossing 
project.  
 
As an Associate Broker for Houlihan Lawrence and the top selling agent in Somers, I feel there is an 
unquestionable need for a town home community like the proposed Somers Crossing project.  Somers Crossing 
will offer residents a life-style that is currently unavailable in our town.  
As a local real estate professional, my colleagues and I receive constant requests for an alternative to Heritage 
Hills.  Many residents desiring town home/condominium style living are looking for 2-car garages, full basements, 
and energy efficient/environmentally friendly utilities.  Although there are a limited number of 2-car garage 
condominiums available in Heritage Hills there are no basements and no energy efficient options.  
 
It is my opinion that the profile of the buyer looking for what Somers Crossing will offer is the empty nester who 
have raised their family in Somers or the surrounding areas and is connected to the community.  They want to sell 
their single family homes, down size, reduce their expenses, and simplify their lives as they head towards 
retirement.  Somers Crossing would fill a much needed housing void in Somers.  
 
On a personal note, my husband and I have lived in Somers for 29 years.  Our children have gone through the 
Somers Schools system, we have many friends in the community and our eldest son just purchased a home in 
Somers.  We are at the stage in our lives where we are ready to downsize.  We want to stay in “Somers”.  Heritage 
Hills does not offer what we are looking for.   We thought Somers Crossing was the answer until we heard that the 
town homes would be taxed as fee simple.  This makes Somers Crossing no longer a viable option. 
 
If Somers Crossing town homes are taxed as fee simple, making the taxes on a $700,000 purchase price over 
$19,000, the town homes will be undesirable.  The projected buyer for the Somers Crossing town home is looking 
to stay in the community and get away from paying the taxes they are currently paying on their single family 
homes.  Simplify their lives and their expenses.  
 
It is my professional opinion that a fee-simple tax structure will make the Somers Crossing town homes unsalable. 
If this is the case, I would strongly urge the Boniello Development Corp to seriously rethink pursuing this project. 
 
Sincerely, 

Lin Crispinelli 
 
Lin Crispinelli 
Associate Real Estate Broker 
Houlihan Lawrence, Inc. 
914-261-6967 
Lcrispinelli@houlihanlawrence.com 
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  Customer Loyalty through Client Satisfaction 

11 Bradhurst Avenue 

Hawthorne, NY 10532 

T: 914.347.7500 

F: 914.347.7266 

www.maserconsulting.com 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Section A Sidewalk Improvements - Somers Towne Center Route 100 

Driveway to Route 100/Route 202 Intersection and Corners $101,805.00 $10,180.50 $111,985.50

Section B Sidewalk Improvements - Somers Towne Center Route 202 

Driveway to Site Western Property Line $52,799.50 $5,279.95 $58,079.45

Section C Sidewalk Improvements - Site Western Property Line to Firemans 

Field East Driveway $20,700.00 $2,070.00 $22,770.00

Section D Sidewalk Improvements - Firemans Field West Property Line to 

School East Driveway $44,920.00 $4,492.00 $49,412.00

Value of Land (8,000 S.F. = .185 Acres) $27,750.00 - $27,750.00

Phase I Assessment $10,000.00 - $10,000.00

Title Search $5,000.00 - $5,000.00

Right of Way Dedication Maps $15,000.00 - $15,000.00

NOTE: CONTINGENCY INCLUDES COST OF DESIGN OF SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS.

Town of Somers, Westchester County, New York

Somers Crossing - Sidewalk Improvements

Preliminary Cost Estimate Summary

$57,750.00$0.00$57,750.00SUB-TOTAL: Land Dedication

TOTAL10% CONTINGENCYSUB TOTAL

March 9, 2016

LAND DONATION TO NYSDOT

SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL COST OF IMPROVEMENTS $277,974.50 $22,022.45 $299,996.95

SUB-TOTAL: Sidewalk Improvements Section A-E $220,224.50 $22,022.45 $242,246.95

TOTAL COST OF IMPROVEMENTS



 Somers Crossing Sidewalk Improvements 

  Customer Loyalty through Client Satisfaction 

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT

203.02 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL CY $40.00 130 $5,200.00

203.07 SELECT GRANULAR FILL CY $60.00 340 $20,400.00

304.11000008 CRUSHED STONE AGGREGATE SUBBASE COURSE CY $60.00 65 $3,900.00

603.6005 REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE CLASS III, 24 INCH DIAMETER LF $80.00 20 $1,600.00

603.7307 REINFORCED CONRETE PIPE END SECTIONS 30 INCH DIAMETER EA $3,000.00 2 $6,000.00

608.0101 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS CY $700.00 44 $30,800.00

608.21 EMBEDDED DETECTABLE WARNING UNITS SY $350.00 4.5 $1,575.00

609.0401 CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE CURB TYPE VF150 LF $30.00 705 $21,150.00

610.1402 TOPSOIL CY $35.00 30.0 $1,050.00

610.1601 ESTABLISHING TURF AC $10,000.00 0.08 $750.00

647.31 RELOCATE SIGN PANEL, SIGN PANEL ASSEMBLY SIZE I (UNDER 30 SF) EA $100.00 8 $800.00

680.813108 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL SECTION, TYPE I - FOR 16 INCH BY 18 INCH LED MODULE EA $850.00 4 $3,400.00

680.8141 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL BRACKET MOUNT ASSEMBLY EA $330.00 4 $1,320.00

680.81500008 PEDESTRIAN BI-MODAL MAN/HAND & COUNT-DOWN TIMER MODULE EA $400.00 4 $1,600.00

680.8225 PEDESTRIAN PUSHBUTTON AND SIGN - WITHOUT POST EA $250.00 4 $1,000.00

685.11 WHITE EPOXY REFLECTORIZED PAVEMENT STRIPES - 20 MILS LF $1.50 840 $1,260.00

SUB TOTAL $101,805.00

10% CONTINGENCY $10,180.50

TOTAL $111,985.50

E-1

Preliminary Cost Estimate

Somers Crossing - Sidewalk Improvements

Town of Somers, Westchester County, New York

Section A Sidewalk Improvements - Somers Towne Center Route 100 Driveway to Route 100/Route 202 Intersection and Corners



 Somers Crossing Sidewalk Improvements 

 MC Project No. 13000687A 

Preliminary Cost Estimate 

Page 3 of 5 

  Customer Loyalty through Client Satisfaction  

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT

203.02 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL CY $40.00 77 $3,080.00

304.11000008 CRUSHED STONE AGGREGATE SUBBASE COURSE CY $60.00 38 $2,280.00

402.126102 12.5MM F1 SUPERPAVE HMA, 60 SERIES COMPACTION TON $110.00 0.375 $41.25

402.256902 25MM F9 SUPERPAVE HMA, 60 SERIES COMPACTION TON $130.00 0.625 $81.25

402.376902 37.5MM F9 SUPERPAVE HMA, 60 SERIES COMPACTION TON $145.00 2.000 $290.00

608.0101 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS CY $700.00 25 $17,500.00

608.21 EMBEDDED DETECTABLE WARNING UNITS SY $350.00 2.5 $875.00

609.0401 CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE CURB TYPE VF150 LF $30.00 395 $11,850.00

610.1402 TOPSOIL CY $35.00 26.0 $910.00

610.1601 ESTABLISHING TURF AC $10,000.00 0.07 $650.00

647.31 RELOCATE SIGN PANEL, SIGN PANEL ASSEMBLY SIZE I (UNDER 30 SF) EA $100.00 2 $200.00

680.5001 POLE EXCAVATION AND CONCRETE FOUNDATION CY $1,850.00 3 $5,550.00

680.6808 TRAFFIC SIGNAL POLE-BRACKET MOUNT 8 FEET MOUNTING HEIGHT EA $1,350.00 2 $2,700.00

680.813108 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL SECTION, TYPE I - FOR 16 INCH BY 18 INCH LED MODULE EA $850.00 2 $1,700.00

680.8141 PEDESTRIAN SIGNAL BRACKET MOUNT ASSEMBLY EA $330.00 2 $660.00

680.81500008 PEDESTRIAN BI-MODAL MAN/HAND & COUNT-DOWN TIMER MODULE EA $400.00 2 $800.00

680.8225 PEDESTRIAN PUSHBUTTON AND SIGN - WITHOUT POST EA $250.00 2 $500.00

685.11 WHITE EPOXY REFLECTORIZED PAVEMENT STRIPES - 20 MILS LF $1.50 2,088 $3,132.00

SUB TOTAL $52,799.50

10% CONTINGENCY $5,279.95

TOTAL $58,079.45

E-2

Preliminary Cost Estimate

Somers Crossing - Sidewalk Improvements

Town of Somers, Westchester County, New York

Section B Sidewalk Improvements - Somers Towne Center Route 202 Driveway to Site Western Property Line

  



 Somers Crossing Sidewalk Improvements 

 MC Project No. 13000687A 

Preliminary Cost Estimate 

Page 4 of 5 

  Customer Loyalty through Client Satisfaction  

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT

203.02 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL CY $40.00 54 $2,160.00

304.11000008 CRUSHED STONE AGGREGATE SUBBASE COURSE CY $60.00 32 $1,920.00

608.0101 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS CY $700.00 21 $14,700.00

610.1402 TOPSOIL CY $35.00 32.0 $1,120.00

610.1601 ESTABLISHING TURF AC $10,000.00 0.08 $800.00

SUB TOTAL $20,700.00

10% CONTINGENCY $2,070.00

TOTAL $22,770.00

E-3

Preliminary Cost Estimate

Somers Crossing - Sidewalk Improvements

Town of Somers, Westchester County, New York

Section C Sidewalk Improvements - Site Western Property Line to Firemans Field East Driveway

 

  



 Somers Crossing Sidewalk Improvements 

 MC Project No. 13000687A 

Preliminary Cost Estimate 

Page 5 of 5 

  Customer Loyalty through Client Satisfaction  

ITEM NUMBER DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY AMOUNT

201.07 CLEARING AND GRUBBING AC $10,000.00 0.02 $200.00

203.02 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION AND DISPOSAL CY $40.00 27 $1,080.00

203.07 SELECT GRANULAR FILL CY $60.00 170 $10,200.00

206.0201 TRENCH AND CULVERT EXCAVATION CY $50.00 20 $1,000.00

304.11000008 CRUSHED STONE AGGREGATE SUBBASE COURSE CY $60.00 16 $960.00

603.63030215 PRECAST CONCRETE BOX CULVERT, 3 FOOT SPAN, 2 FOOT RISE LF $1,500.00 10 $15,000.00

606.5348 RESETTING BOX BEAM GUIDE RAILING (NEW POSTS) LF $35.00 200.00 $7,000.00

606.5920 RESETTING BOX BEAM GUIDE RAILING END ASSEMBLY EA $350.00 2.00 $700.00

608.0101 CONCRETE SIDEWALKS AND DRIVEWAYS CY $700.00 11 $7,700.00

610.1402 TOPSOIL CY $35.00 8.0 $280.00

610.1601 ESTABLISHING TURF AC $10,000.00 0.02 $200.00

614.060104 TREE REMOVAL, 4" TO 6" DIAMETER, STUMPS GRUBBED EA $300.00 2.0 $600.00

SUB TOTAL $44,920.00

10% CONTINGENCY $4,492.00

TOTAL $49,412.00

E-4

Preliminary Cost Estimate

Somers Crossing - Sidewalk Improvements

Town of Somers, Westchester County, New York

Section D Sidewalk Improvements - Firemans Field West Property Line to School East Driveway

 



APPENDIX R 



Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Post 15 11.5983 1.3767

Post 6
to Pocket Wetland 2.1828 1.5939

Post 13
to Infiltration System #6 1.5867 0.0000

Post 14
to Infiltration System #7 0.6078 0.0000

1.0148 0.8137

Post 7,8 &12
to Infiltration System #5 2.9506 0.0000

Change in Loading (Kg/yr) -2.7116

Percentage Change (%) -24.53%

Percentage Change (%)

Total Post 
Development 8.3429

Rev. 3/7/2016

Change in Loading (lbs/yr)

Post 1 & 11 
to Infiltration System #4 3.0524 0.0000

Post 2 & 3
to Infiltration System #1 3.0922 0.0000

Post 9 & 10
to Infiltration System #2

Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Loading (lbs/yr)Area (acres)

Summary Total Loading to Design Line

-1.2300

Post 4 & 5
to Infiltration Basin #3

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates & removal credit from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater
  Retrofit Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Pre-Development 5.014227.4182

Total Post 
Development 3.784327.4182

1.3326 0.0000

-24.53%

Loading (Kg/yr)

Pre-Development 11.0545



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
21,328 0.4896 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 2.2990

1,173,009 26.9286 0.02 0.068 48.60 0.90 0.15 2.7152

1,194,337 27.4182 Total 5.0142

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Rev. 3/7/2016

Total

(2% Impervious in existing woods)
Woods

Impervious

Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Entire Site Pre-Development

Type



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
5,775 0.1326 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 0.6225
8,302 0.1906 0.00 0.05 48.60 0.90 0.15 0.0141

60,066 1.3789 0.41 0.42 48.60 0.90 0.41 0.1951

74,143 1.7021 Total 0.8318

Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
60,555 1.3902 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 2.3607

60,555 1.3902 Total 2.3607

Total 134,698 3.0922 Total 3.1925

0.3193

Total 2.8733

2.8733

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Woods

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 2

Type
Impervious

Total

Residential

Total

Post Development Basin 3

Type
Residential

CDS
Contech CDS Unit Removal Rate 10%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

INF 1
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
600 0.0138 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 0.0647

27,345 0.6278 0.41 0.42 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.0660

27,945 0.6415 Total 1.1307

Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
30,103 0.6911 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.1736

30,103 0.6911 Total 1.1736

Total 58048 1.3326 Total 2.3043

0.2304

Total 2.0739

2.0739

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Residential

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 9

Type
Impervious

Total

Total

Post Development Basin 10

Type
Residential

CDS
Contech CDS Unit Removal Rate 10%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

INF 2
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
19,613 0.4503 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 0.7646

19,613 0.4503 Total 0.7646

Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
24,590 0.5645 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 0.9586

24,590 0.5645 Total 0.9586

Total 44203 1.0148 Total 1.7233

0.0959

Total 0.8628

Total 1.6274

0.8137

Total 0.8137

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 4

Type
Residential

Total

Total

Post Development Basin 5

Type
Residential

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

CDS applied to Post 5
Contech CDS Unit Removal Rate 10%

INF 3
Infiltration Basin Removal Rate 50%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
6,525 0.1498 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 0.7034
9,325 0.2141 0.00 0.05 48.60 0.90 0.15 0.0159
81,107 1.8620 0.41 0.42 48.60 0.90 0.41 0.2635

96,957 2.2258 Total 0.9827

Area (sq.ft) Area(acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
36,006 0.8266 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.4037

36,006 0.8266 Total 1.4037

Total 132,963 3.0524 Total 2.3864

0.2386

Total 2.1478

2.1478

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Type
Impervious

Woods

Total

Post Development Basin 11

Post Development Basin 1

Type

Residential

Total

Residential

INF 4
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

CDS
Contech CDS Unit Removal Rate 10%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
43,740 1.0041 0.23 0.257 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.0459

43,740 1.0041 Total 1.0459

Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
44,803 1.0285 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.7466

44,803 1.0285 Total 1.7466

Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
39,987 0.9180 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.5589

39,987 0.9180 Total 1.5589

Total 2.9506 Total 4.3514

0.4351

Total 3.9163

3.9163

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 7

Type
Residential

Total

Total

Post Development Basin 8

Type
Residential

INF 5
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Post Development Basin 12

Total

Residential

CDS
Contech CDS Unit Removal Rate 10%

Type



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
3,557 0.0817 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 0.3834
65,561 1.5051 0.41 0.42 48.60 0.90 0.41 2.5559

69,118 1.5867 Total 2.9393

0.2939

Total 2.6454

2.6454

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Residential

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 13

Type
Impervious

Removal Rate 10%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Total

CDS
Contech CDS Unit

INF 6
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
26,474 0.6078 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 1.0321

26,474 0.6078 Total 1.0321

0.1032

Total 0.9289

0.9289

Total 0.0000

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 14

Type
Residential

Removal Rate 10%

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Total

CDS
Contech CDS Unit

INF 7
Subsurface Stormwater Infiltration System Removal Rate 100%



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
95,081 2.1828 0.41 0.419 48.60 0.90 0.41 3.7067

95,081 2.1828 Total 3.7067

2.1128

Total 1.5939

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 6

Type
Residential

Pocket Wetland Removal Rate 57%

Total



Area (sq.ft) Area (acres) I Rv P(in) Pj C(mg/lt) L(lbs)
500,351 11.4865 0.00 0.050 48.60 0.90 0.15 0.8516
4,871 0.1118 1.00 0.950 48.60 0.90 0.50 0.5251

505,222 11.5983 Total 1.3767

Sources:

Pollutant Loading Analysis

Impervious

Rev. 3/7/2016
Somers Crossing - Phosphorus loading analysis with simple method

Post Development Basin 15

Type
Woods

Total

 - Phosphorus concentration (C) mg/Lt rates from "East of Hudson Watershed Corporation - Stormwater Retrofit 
   Project Design Manual",  dated March 5, 2015
 - New York State Stormwater Management Design Manual, Appendix "A" 
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